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 GTC Telecom is registering up to 5,000,000 shares of our common stock already issued, 31,230,770 shares issuable 
by us upon conversion of convertible notes and 22,395,000 shares issuable upon exercise of warrants all held by existing 
shareholders.   
 
 The selling shareholders may resell these shares, and resell the shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants, using 
this prospectus.  All of the common stock registered by this prospectus will be sold by the selling shareholders at the 
prevailing market price at the time they are sold. 
 
 Our common stock is quoted on the over-the-counter electronic bulletin board under the symbol "GTCC." 

 
 

The Securities Offered Hereby Involve a High Degree of Risk. 
See "Risk Factors" Beginning on Page 3.  

 
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of 
these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a 
criminal offense. 
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY 

GTC Telecom Corp. 

 We are a provider of various telecommunication services, including local and long distance telephone services as 
well as a provider of Internet service access.  We were organized on May 17, 1994 and are currently based in Costa Mesa, 
California.  Our common stock is quoted on the over-the-counter electronic bulletin board under the symbol "GTCC." 
 

Our principal office is located at 3151 Airway Ave., Suite P-3, Costa Mesa, CA 92627, telephone number (714) 
549-7700.  Our worldwide website is www.gtctelecom.com.  Information contained on our website is not part of this 
prospectus.   

The Offering 

We are registering 5,000,000 shares for sale by existing shareholders, up to 31,230,770 shares for sale by existing 
convertible note holders upon conversion of their convertible notes, and up to 22,395,000 shares for sale by existing warrant 
holders upon the exercise of their warrants.  All of the common stock registered by this prospectus will be sold by the selling 
shareholders at the prevailing market prices at the time they are sold.  We currently have 29,625,622 shares of common stock 
outstanding, and if all of the convertible notes are converted and all the warrants are exercised, we will have 83,351,392 
shares of common stock outstanding. 
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RISK FACTORS 
 
Our company is subject to various risks which may materially harm our business, financial condition and 

results of operations.  You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below and the other 
information in this filing before deciding to purchase our common stock.  These are not the only risks and 
uncertainties that we face.  If any of these risks or uncertainties actually occur, our business, financial condition or 
operating results could be materially harmed.  In that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline and 
you could lose all or part of your investment. 

 
 We currently do not have sufficient cash flow from operations to meet all of our monthly operating requirements.  
Currently, billings from accounts receivable are sufficient to meet our monthly operating requirements.  However, the 
amounts actually collected from our customers is not sufficient to fully pay all of our monthly operating expenses.   With our 
recent entry into the local telephone market, an increasing number of our customers have elected to pay their monthly bills by 
check.  Previously, the majority of our long distance customers elected to pay their bills by credit card.  Payment by credit 
card allows us to collect our billings within days of billing our customers.  Payment by check, however, typically results in 
collection times in excess of thirty days.  In addition, payment by credit card allows us to quickly determine whether a 
customer is going to pay their bill whereas, with payment by check, this determination can take in excess of thirty days.  As a 
result, we have experienced a significant increase in the amount of bad debt associated with our local product. 
 
 In an effort to reduce this bad debt and increase collections, we have recently begun implementing several corrective 
measures.  These include: determining a customer's credit rating prior to provisioning service; strengthening our internal and 
third-party collection efforts by increasing the number of our collection employees and reducing the timeframe before 
collection efforts are initiated; and reporting delinquent customers to the appropriate credit bureaus.  We anticipate that these 
measures will increase our cash flows from operating activities.  However, if we are unsuccessful in our efforts to increase 
our cash collections or increase revenues and customers, we will not have sufficient cash flows to fund our monthly 
operations as well as service our debt obligations.  
 
 We may not have sufficient cash to repay our debt obligations.  Recently, we restructured approximately $7.7 
million in accrued liabilities consisting of notes payable, accrued interest and other outstanding accounts payable, into new 
short and long term debt (see below) that resulted in the elimination of approximately $6.9 million in accrued liabilities.  
Beginning in September 2005, we were required to begin making monthly principal and interest payments on these new 
obligations.  Unless we are able to increase our revenues and increase our cash collections, we may not have sufficient cash 
flow to fully support daily operations and service our debt obligations and will need to increase revenues and customers, 
decrease bad debt, or acquire alternate financing. 
 
 We are dependent on a limited number of suppliers which are required for us to provide our services.  We do not 
own our own long distance network and therefore currently depend primarily upon Sprint Communications LP to provide for 
the transmission of long distance phone calls by our customers and to provide the call detail records upon which we base our 
customer’s billings.  We also rely upon incumbent local exchange carriers such as BellSouth Communications and SBC 
Communications to provide the underlying networks for the provisioning of our local telephone service.  Additionally, our 
Internet services are provided pursuant to agreements with various outside companies.  Although we believe that our relations 
with these companies are strong and should remain so with continued contract compliance, the termination of our contracts 
with these companies, the loss of services provided by them, or a reduction in the quality of service we receive from them 
would likely harm our business.  For additional details, please see Major Suppliers below. 
 
 Competition in our markets is very intense and we may not be able to compete.  The local and long distance 
telecommunications industry is highly competitive and affected by the introduction of new services by, and the market 
activities of, major industry participants, including AT&T Corp., WorldCom, Sprint Corporation, SBC, Verizon, and other 
national and regional local and interexchange carriers.  Competition in the local and long distance business is based upon 
pricing, customer service, billing services and perceived quality.  We compete against various national and regional carriers 
that are composed of both facilities-based providers (those that carry traffic on their own equipment) and switchless resellers 
(those that resell local and long distance carried by facilities-based providers) offering essentially the same services as we do.  
Several of our competitors are substantially larger and have greater financial, technical and marketing resources.  Although 
we believe that we have the human and technical resources to pursue our strategy and compete effectively in this competitive 
environment, our success will depend upon our continued ability to profitably provide high quality, high value services at 
prices generally competitive with, or lower than, those charged by our competitors.   
 
 We expect to encounter continued competition from major domestic and international communications companies.  
In addition, we may be subject to additional competition due to the enactment of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, the 
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development of new technologies and increased availability of domestic and international transmission capacity.  A 
continuing trend toward business combinations and alliances in the telecommunications industry may create significant new 
competitors, which may have financial, personnel and other resources significantly greater than ours.  Other potential 
competitors include cable television companies, wireless telephone companies, electric utilities, microwave carriers and 
private networks of large end users.  
 
 The telecommunications industry is in a period of rapid technological evolution, marked by the introduction of new 
product and service offerings and increasing transmission capacity for services similar to those provided by us.  We cannot 
predict which of many possible future product and service offerings will be important to maintain our competitive position or 
what expenditures will be required to develop and provide such products and services.   
 
 The market for Internet-based online services is relatively new, intensely competitive and rapidly changing. Since 
the advent of commercial services on the Internet, the number of Internet Service Providers and online services competing for 
users' attention and spending has proliferated because of, among other reasons, the absence of substantial barriers to entry, 
and we expect that competition will continue to intensify.  Many of our current and potential competitors such as Earthlink,  
Yahoo, AOL, UUNET, and Microsoft Network have longer operating histories, larger customer bases, greater brand 
recognition and significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources.  These competitors may be able to respond 
more quickly to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements and to devote greater resources to the 
development, promotion and sale of their products and services than we are.   
 
 As our customers are free to change their telecommunication provider, our revenues may decrease at any time. 
The vast majority of our customers are not obligated to purchase any minimum usage amount and can discontinue service, 
without penalty, at any time.  Therefore, we cannot know if our customers will continue to buy their local or long distance 
telephone service through us.  A high level of customer attrition is inherent in the long distance industry, and our revenues 
are affected by such attrition.  Attrition is attributable to a variety of factors, including termination of customers by us for 
nonpayment and the initiatives of existing and new competitors as they engage in, among other things, national advertising 
campaigns, telemarketing programs and the issuance of cash or other forms of incentives. 
 
 In the event that a significant portion of our customers decide to purchase service from another provider, we do not 
know if we would be able to replace our customer base from other sources.  Loss of a significant portion of our customers 
would result in a corresponding reduction in our revenues.   
 
 We are subject to extensive government regulation that may be changed in ways that hurt our business.  We are 
subject to regulation by the FCC and by various state public service and public utility commissions as a nondominant 
provider of local and long distance services.  We are required to file tariffs for interstate and international service with the 
FCC, which tariffs are presumed lawful and become effective on one day’s notice.  We are also required to file tariffs or 
obtain approval for intrastate service provided in most of the states in which we market local or long distance services.  By 
engaging in direct marketing to end users, we will be subject to applicable regulatory standards for marketing activities and 
the increased FCC and state attention to certain marketing practices may become more significant to us.  Additionally, certain 
marketing practices, including the methods and means to convert a customer's telephone service from one carrier to another, 
have recently been subject to increased regulatory review at both the federal and state levels.  This increased regulatory 
review could impede our possible future acquisition of new business from other resellers.  Our marketing activities mandate 
compliance with applicable state and federal regulations.  We are unable to predict the effect of such increased regulatory 
review. 
 
 You may be unable to effectively evaluate the business of our Perfexa subsidiary because Perfexa’s outsourced 
call center and Information Technology service business has existed for only a short period of time.  Perfexa-U.S. was 
originally incorporated on October 3, 2000 as GTC Wireless, Inc. and was inactive until September 13, 2002 when it changed 
its name to Perfexa Solutions, Inc.  Perfexa-U.S. owns 99% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Perfexa Solutions 
Pvt. Ltd., a corporation formed under the laws of the Republic of India.  Perfexa develops and markets offshore outsourced 
call center solutions and information technology services to small and medium size companies and does not have an 
established operating history.  Accordingly, you can evaluate Perfexa’s business, and therefore its future prospects, based 
only its very limited operating history.  In addition, you must consider Perfexa’s prospects in light of the risks, expenses, and 
difficulties frequently encountered in the establishment of a new business in a rapidly evolving market.   
 
 Perfexa will be subject to certain inherent risks associated with the Republic of India.  Perfexa’s operating 
subsidiary, Perfexa Solutions Pvt. Ltd., is incorporated in the Republic of India, and substantially all of Perfexa’s assets and 
employees are located in India.  Consequently, Perfexa’s financial performance will be affected by political, social and 
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economic developments affecting India, Government of India policies, including taxation and foreign investment policies, 
government currency exchange control, as well as changes in exchange rates and interest rates. 
 
 Regional conflicts in South Asia could adversely affect the Indian economy, disrupt Perfexa’s operations and cause 
its business to suffer.  South Asia has from time to time experienced instances of civil unrest and hostilities among 
neighboring countries, including between India and Pakistan.  India's relations with neighboring Pakistan, each a nuclear 
power, are tense. In April 1999, India and Pakistan each conducted long-range missile tests.  Since May 1999, military 
confrontations between India and Pakistan have occurred in the disputed Himalayan region of Kashmir. India's relations with 
neighboring China are also tense.  Events of this nature in the future could influence the Indian economy and have a material 
adverse effect on Perfexa’s business.  The potential for such hostilities has recently increased as a result of terrorist attacks in 
the U.S. and the recent attack on the Indian Parliament has increased tensions between India and Pakistan.  Events of this 
nature in the future could influence the Indian economy and could have a material adverse effect on Perfexa’s operations and 
on the market for Perfexa’s services.  
 
 Political instability or changes in the government in India could delay the liberalization of the Indian economy and 
adversely affect economic conditions in India generally, which could impact Perfexa’s financial results and prospects.   Since 
1991, successive Indian governments have pursued policies of economic liberalization, including significantly relaxing 
restrictions on the private sector.  Nevertheless, the role of the Indian central and state governments in the Indian economy as 
producers, consumers and regulators has remained significant.  The Government of India has changed several times over the 
past decade.  The current Government of India, formed in 2004, has announced policies and taken initiatives that support the 
continued economic liberalization policies that have been pursued by previous governments.  There can be no assurances that 
that these liberalization policies will continue in the future.  The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific 
laws and policies affecting technology companies, foreign investment, currency exchange and other matters affecting 
investment in its securities could change as well.  A significant change in India’s economic liberalization and deregulation 
policies could adversely affect business and economic conditions in India generally and Perfexa’s business in particular. 
 
 Perfexa’s business is subject to fluctuations in foreign currencies.  Perfexa’s business is subject to fluctuations in 
the value of the Indian Rupee against the U.S. dollar due to Perfexa’s Indian subsidiary.  Operational costs including labor, 
equipment, and facilities leases could fluctuate depending on the value of the Rupee vis-a-vis the U.S. dollar.  With the recent 
decline in the value of the dollar in relation to the Rupee, we have experienced a corresponding increase in our operating 
costs.  In the future, Perfexa may also sell its products and services in other currencies which would make the management of 
currency fluctuations more difficult. 
 

Our stock price will fluctuate after this offering, which could result in substantial losses for investors.  The 
market price for our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to a number of factors, some of which are beyond 
our control. These factors include: 

 
• Quarterly variations in operating results; 
• Changes in financial estimates by securities analysts; 
• Announcements by us or our competitors of new products, significant contracts, acquisitions or strategic 

relationships; 
• Publicity about our company, management, products or our competitors; 
• Additions or departures of key personnel; 
• Any future sales of our common stock or other securities; and 
• Stock market price and volume fluctuations of publicly traded companies. 

 
These and other external factors have caused and may continue to cause the market price and demand for our 

common stock to fluctuate substantially, which may limit or prevent investors from readily selling their shares of common 
stock and may otherwise negatively affect the liquidity of our common stock. 
 

In the past, securities class action litigation has often been brought against companies following periods of volatility 
in the market price of their securities. If securities class action litigation is brought against us it could result in substantial 
costs and a diversion of our management's attention and resources, which could hurt our business. 
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Certain shares of our common stock are restricted from immediate resale. The lapse of those restrictions, coupled 
with the sale of the related shares in the market, or the market’s expectation of such sales, could result in an immediate 
and substantial decline in the market price of our common stock.  A substantial number of our shares of common stock are 
restricted from immediate resale in the public market.  The sale or resale of those shares in the public market, or the market's 
expectation of such sales, may result in an immediate and substantial decline in the market price of our shares.  Such a 
decline will adversely affect our investors, and make it more difficult for us to raise additional funds through equity offerings 
in the future. 
 
 Because we are subject to the “penny stock” rules, the level of trading activity in our stock may be reduced.  Our 
common stock may be deemed to be “penny stock” as that term is defined in Rule 3a51-1 promulgated under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934.  Penny stocks are stock: 
 

• With a price of less than $5.00 per share; 

• That are not traded on a “recognized” national exchange;  

• Whose prices are not quoted on the Nasdaq automated quotation system (Nasdaq listed stock must still have a 
price of not less than $5.00 per share); or  

• In issuers with net tangible assets less than $2.0 million (if the issuer has been in continuous operation for at 
least three years) or $5.0 million (if in continuous operation for less than three years), or with average revenues 
of less than $6.0 million for the last three years. 

Broker/dealers dealing in penny stocks are required to provide potential investors with a document disclosing the 
risks of penny stocks.  Moreover, broker/dealers are required to determine whether an investment in a penny stock is a 
suitable investment for a prospective investor.  These requirements may reduce the potential market for our common stock by 
reducing the number of potential investors.  This may make it more difficult for investors in our common stock to resell 
shares to third parties or to otherwise dispose of them.  This could cause our stock price to decline. 

You may incur dilution in the future.  We may require additional funds to support our working capital 
requirements or for other purposes, and will seek to raise additional funds through public or private equity financing. Also, 
we may acquire other companies or finance strategic alliances by issuing equity.  Any capital raising transaction may result in 
additional dilution to our shareholders. 
 
Special Note About Forward-Looking Statements 
 

We have made forward-looking statements in this prospectus, including the sections entitled "Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and "Business," that are based on our 
management’s beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to our management. Forward-looking 
statements include the information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations, business strategies, 
financing plans, competitive position, industry environment, potential growth opportunities, the effects of future regulation 
and the effects of competition. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical facts and can be 
identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as the words "believe," "expect," "anticipate," "intend," "plan," 
"estimate" or similar expressions. These statements are only predictions and involve known and unknown risks and 
uncertainties, including the risks outlined under "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this prospectus. 
 

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot 
guarantee future results, events, levels of activity, performance or achievement. We are not under any duty to update any of 
the forward-looking statements after the date of this prospectus to conform these statements to actual results, unless required 
by law.  
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USE OF PROCEEDS 
  

This prospectus relates to shares of our common stock that may be offered and sold from time to time by certain 
selling shareholders. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock in this offering.  However, 
we may receive proceeds from the exercise of warrants.  The weighted average exercise price to acquire all of the shares of 
common stock included in this prospectus underlying the exercise of warrants is $0.21 per share, and the maximum proceeds 
to us upon the exercise of all the warrants is approximately $4,672,500. 
 

These proceeds would be received from time to time as warrants are exercised, and we will use these proceeds for 
working capital needs. 
 

Our allocation of proceeds represents our best estimate based upon the expected exercise of warrants and the 
requirements of our proposed business and marketing plan. If any of these factors change, we may reallocate some of the net 
proceeds. The portion of any net proceeds not immediately required will be invested in certificates of deposit or similar short-
term interest bearing instruments. 
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SELLING SHAREHOLDERS 
 

The following table provides certain information with respect to shares offered by the selling shareholders: 

 
 
 
 

Selling  
Stockholder 

 
 

Shares 
Beneficially 

Owned Before 
Offering 

Percentage of 
Outstanding 

Shares 
Beneficially 

Owned Before 
Offering(1) 

 
Shares to be 

Acquired upon 
Conversion of 
Convertible 

Notes(3) 

 
 
 

Shares to be 
Sold in the 
Offering 

 
Percentage of 
Outstanding 
Shares To Be 
Owned After 

The Offering(4) 
Alpha Capital  7,647,059 (5) 21.19%(2) 9,185,520 16,832,579 0% 
DCOFI Master 9,176,471 (6) 24.54%(2) 11,022,624 20,199,095 0% 
SCG Capital 2,294,118 (7) 7.27%(2) 2,755,656 5,049,774 0% 
Silver Oak 3,823,529 (8) 11.64%(2) 4,592,760 8,416,290 0% 
Ellis International 1,529,412 (9) 4.95%    1,837,104 3,366,516 0% 
Bumper Fund, LP 1,529,412(10) 4.95% 1,837,104 3,366,516 0% 
Lance Baral 1,250,000(11)  4.25% N/A 1,250,000 0% 
Blue Future, Inc. 25,000(12) * N/A 25,000 0% 
Hunter Wise Financial 
Group LLC 

120,000(13) * N/A 120,000 0% 

_________________________________________  
*  Represents less than 1% of outstanding shares.     

 
(1) Percentage of outstanding shares prior to offering is based on 29,625,622 shares of common stock outstanding as of 

the date of this prospectus plus the shares underlying warrants being registered for that particular selling shareholder 
in this offering. 

(2) Represents the total maximum percentage of shares that may be owned by the selling shareholder.  However, 
pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into between us and the selling shareholder, the selling shareholder 
may not own at any one time, more than 4.99% of the our outstanding common stock. 

(3) Reflects 175% of the number of shares that may be acquired by the Selling Shareholder upon conversion of the 
principal plus interest underlying the 12% Convertible Note at a conversion rate of $0.13 per share. 

(4) Percentage of outstanding shares is based on 29,625,622 shares of common stock outstanding as of date of this 
prospectus, together with the 175% of the shares of common stock that may be acquired from the conversion of the 
principal amount and interest of the Convertible Notes at a the conversion rate of $0.13 per share, and 22,395,000 
shares underlying warrants being registered in this offering. 

(5) Includes 3,529,412 shares underlying Class A Warrants and 2,941,176 Class B Warrants. 
(6) Includes 4,235,294 shares underlying Class A Warrants and 3,529,412 Class B Warrants. 
(7) Includes 1,058,824 shares underlying Class A Warrants and 882,353 Class B Warrants. 
(8) Includes 1,764,706 shares underlying Class A Warrants and 1,470,588 Class B Warrants. 
(9) Includes 705,882 shares underlying Class A Warrants and 855,235 Class B Warrants. 
(10) Includes 705,882 shares underlying Class A Warrants and 855,235 Class B Warrants. 
(11) Includes 250,000 shares underlying warrants to acquire common stock at an exercise price of $0.11 per share. 
(12) Reflects number of shares underlying warrants to acquire common stock at an exercise price of $0.17 per share. 
(13) Reflects number of shares underlying warrants to acquire common stock at an exercise price of $0.20 per share. 

Material Relationships With The Selling Shareholders 

 Blue Future, Inc. has been retained by us to provide financial consulting services.  B.I.G. Capital, LLC was 
previously retained by us to provide investor and public relations services.  Hunter Wise Financial Group LLC has been 
retained by us to provide investment banking services.  With the exception of the above, we have had no other material 
relationships with the selling shareholders during the past three years. 
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 
 

The selling stockholders have advised us that the sale or distribution of our common stock owned by the selling 
stockholders may be effected by the selling stockholders as principals or through one or more underwriters, brokers, dealers 
or agents from time to time in one or more transactions (which may involve crosses or block transactions) (i) on the over-the-
counter market or on any other market in which the price of our shares of common stock are quoted or (ii) in transactions 
otherwise than in the over-the-counter market or in any other market on which the price of our shares of common stock are 
quoted.  Any of such transactions may be effected at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to such 
prevailing market prices, at varying prices determined at the time of sale or at negotiated or fixed prices, in each case as 
determined by the selling stockholders or by agreement between the selling stockholders and underwriters, brokers, dealers or 
agents, or purchasers.  If the selling stockholders effect such transactions by selling their shares of common stock to or 
through underwriters, brokers, dealers or agents, such underwriters, brokers, dealers or agents may receive compensation in 
the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the selling stockholders or commissions from purchasers of common 
stock for whom they may act as agent (which discounts, concessions or commissions as to particular underwriters, brokers, 
dealers or agents may be in excess of those customary in the types of transactions involved). 
 
 We will pay all expenses in connection with the registration and sale of the common stock by the selling security 
holders, who may be deemed to be underwriters in connection with their offering of shares. The estimated expenses of 
issuance and distribution are set forth below: 
 

Securities and Exchange Commission Registration Fee $   1,128 
Printing and Engraving Expenses $   1,000 
Accounting Fees and Expenses $ 10,000 
Legal Fees and Expenses $ 50,000 
Blue Sky Qualification Fees and Expenses $   1,500 
Miscellaneous $   5,000 

TOTAL $ 68,628 

 
Under the securities laws of certain states, the shares of common stock may be sold in such states only through 

registered or licensed brokers or dealers. The selling stockholders are advised to ensure that any underwriters, brokers, 
dealers or agents effecting transactions on behalf of the selling stockholders are registered to sell securities in all fifty states. 
In addition, in certain states the shares of common stock may not be sold unless the shares have been registered or qualified 
for sale in such state or an exemption from registration or qualification is available and we have complied with them. The 
selling stockholders and any brokers, dealers or agents that participate in the distribution of common stock may be considered 
underwriters, and any profit on the sale of common stock by them and any discounts, concessions or commissions received 
by those underwriters, brokers, dealers or agents may be considered underwriting discounts and commissions under the 
Securities Act of 1933. 
 

In accordance with Regulation M under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, neither we nor the selling stockholders 
may bid for, purchase or attempt to induce any person to bid for or purchase, any of our common stock while we or they are 
selling stock in this offering. Neither we nor any of the selling stockholders intends to engage in any passive market making 
or undertake any stabilizing activity for our common stock. None of the selling stockholders will engage in any short selling 
of our securities. We have been advised that under the rules and regulations of the NASD, any broker-dealer may not receive 
discounts, concessions, or commissions in excess of 8% in connection with the sale of any securities registered hereunder. 
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

 From time to time, we may be involved in various claims, lawsuits, disputes with third parties, actions involving 
allegations of discrimination, or breach of contract actions incidental to the operation of our business.  We are not currently 
involved in any such litigation which we believe could have a materially adverse effect on our financial condition or results 
of operations. 

 
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS 

 
The following table sets forth the names and ages of the current directors and executive officers of the Company, the 

director nominees, and the principal offices and positions with the Company held by each person and the date such person 
became a director or executive officer of the Company. The executive officers of the Company are appointed by the Board of 
Directors. The directors serve one-year terms until their successors are elected. The executive officers serve terms of one year 
or until their death, resignation or removal by the Board of Directors. Unless described below, there are no family 
relationships among any of the directors and officers, and none of our officers or directors serves as a director of another 
reporting issuer. 

 
 
Name   Age Position(s) 

 
Paul Sandhu  44 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board 

 
Eric Clemons  34 Director, President, Secretary and Treasurer 

 
Gerald A. DeCiccio 47 Director and Chief Financial Officer 

   
 Paul Sandhu is currently our Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman of our Board of Directors.  Mr. Sandhu has 
been with us since our inception.  Mr. Sandhu has over fourteen years experience with start-up and emerging growth 
companies.  Mr. Sandhu was Co-Founder, President and Co-Owner of Maximum Security, a Security and surveillance 
company he started in 1992.  While at Maximum, Mr. Sandhu actively managed a staff of over 200 employees.  In 1997 Mr. 
Sandhu sold the business to his partner.  Mr. Sandhu graduated from the University of Punjab in India with a degree in 
Engineering.  
 
 Eric Clemons is currently our President and a member of our Board of Directors.  Mr. Clemons has been with us 
since our inception.  Mr. Clemons has over twelve years experience with sales and marketing organizations.  Mr. Clemons 
most recent position prior to joining the Company was as Vice President of Marketing for Intelligent Electronic 
Communications managing a staff of 50 employees. 
 
 Gerald A. DeCiccio joined us in January 1999 as Chief Financial Officer and is currently a member of our Board of 
Directors.  Mr. DeCiccio has over twenty years experience in the financial and accounting field.  Prior to joining us, Mr. 
DeCiccio was the Vice President of Finance and Administration for National Telephone & Communications, Inc., ("NT&C") 
a $150 million inter-exchange carrier and provider of communications products and services.  While at NT&C, Mr. DeCiccio 
managed NT&C's finance, accounting, human resources and legal departments.  Between 1995 and 1997, Mr. DeCiccio was 
the Corporate Controller for Newport Corporation, a $140 million multi-national manufacturer / distributor of laser and 
optics products.  Prior to that, Mr. DeCiccio was the Director of Audit and Quality Systems for Sunrise Medical, Inc., a $750 
million multi-national manufacturer / distributor of health care products.  From 1980 to 1984, Mr. DeCiccio was a 
Supervising Senior Accountant for Ernst and Young.  Mr. DeCiccio received his Bachelor of Science in Accounting from 
Loma Linda University, and his Masters of Science in Finance and Systems Technology from the University of Southern 
California.  Mr. DeCiccio is a Certified Public Accountant in the State of California.  
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 
 

The following table sets forth, as of July 15, 2005, certain information with respect to the equity securities owned of record or 
beneficially by: 
 

• each of our Officers and Directors;  
• each person who owns beneficially more than 5% of each class of our equity securities; and  
• all Directors and Executive Officers as a group.       

                 Common Stock               Percent of1  
    Title of Class         Name and Address of Beneficial Owner              Outstanding    Outstanding 

 
Common Stock 

 
Paul Sandhu2 
3151 Airway Avenue, Suite P-3 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626. 

4,187,715 13.81% 

 
Common Stock 

 
Eric Clemons3 
3151 Airway Avenue, Suite P-3 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626. 

882,522 2.92% 

 
Common Stock 

 
Gerald A. DeCiccio4 
3151 Airway Avenue, Suite P-3 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626. 

413,500 1.38% 

 
Common Stock 

 
Reet Trust5 
21520 Yorba Linda, Suite 6227 
Yorba Linda, CA 92887 

2,000,000 6.75% 

 
Common Stock 

 
Rapaport Family Trust 
584 Via Almar 
Palos Verde Peninsula, CA 90275 

3,595,000 12.13% 

 
Common Stock 

 
All Directors and Officers as a Group  
(3 Persons in total) 

5,483,737 18.51% 

______________________________________ 
(1) Percentage of outstanding shares is based on 29,625,622 shares of common stock outstanding as of the date of this 
prospectus plus shares underlying options exercisable within 60 days for that particular holder. 
 
(2) Includes 693,000 options to acquire shares of our common stock in accordance with Mr. Sandhu’s director 
compensation agreement and our employee benefit plan.  Does not include an aggregate of 837,000 unvested options to 
acquire shares of our common stock granted in accordance with our employee benefit plan. 
 
(3) Includes 572,000 options to acquire shares of our common stock in accordance with Mr. Clemons’ director 
compensation agreement and our employee benefit plan.  Does not include an aggregate of 573,000 unvested options to 
acquire shares of our common stock in accordance with our employee benefit plan. 
 
(4) Includes an aggregate of 391,000 options to acquire shares of our common stock in accordance with Mr. DeCiccio’s 
employment and director compensation agreements and our employee benefit plan.  Does not include an aggregate of 
394,000 unvested options to acquire shares of our common stock in accordance with our employee benefit plan. 
 
(5) The trustee of the Reet Trust is Teg Sandhu, father of S. Paul Sandhu.  However, S. Paul Sandhu disclaims any 
beneficial ownership to the shares held by the Reet Trust. 
 
 We believe that the beneficial owners of securities listed above, based on information furnished by such owners, 
have sole investment and voting power with respect to such shares, subject to community property laws where applicable.  
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Commission and generally includes voting or 
investment power with respect to securities.  Shares of stock subject to options or warrants currently exercisable, or 
exercisable within 60 days, are deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage of the person holding such 
options or warrants, but are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage of any other person. 
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES 

Authorized Capital Stock.  

The authorized capital stock of our company currently consists of 100,000,000 shares of common stock, par value 
$0.001 and 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001.  As of July 15, 2005, we have 29,625,622 shares of 
common stock outstanding and no shares of preferred stock designated or outstanding.   

Common Stock.  Each share of common stock entitles the holder to one vote on each matter submitted to a vote of 
our shareholders, including the election of directors.  There is no cumulative voting.  Subject to preferences that may be 
applicable to any outstanding preferred stock, shareholders are entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any, as may be 
declared from time to time by the Board of Directors.  Shareholders have no preemptive, conversion or other subscription 
rights.  There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions available to the common stock.  In the event of liquidation, 
dissolution or winding up of our company, shareholders are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of 
liabilities, subject to prior distribution rights of preferred stock, if any, then outstanding. 

Preferred Stock.  The Board of Directors is authorized, subject to any limitations prescribed by the Nevada Revised 
Statutes, or the rules of any quotation system or national securities exchange on which stock of our company may be quoted 
or listed, to provide for the issuance of shares of preferred stock in one or more series; to establish from time to time the 
number of shares to be included in each such series; and to fix the rights, powers, preferences, and privileges of the shares of 
such series, without any further vote or action by the shareholders.  Depending upon the terms of the preferred stock 
established by the Board of Directors, any or all series of preferred stock could have preference over the common stock with 
respect to dividends and other distributions and upon liquidation of our company or could have voting or conversion rights 
that could adversely affect the holders of the outstanding common stock.  We have no present plans to issue any shares of 
preferred stock. 

 12% Convertible Promissory Notes.   
 
 General Terms.  In May and July 2005, we issued an aggregate of $2,000,000 principal amount in 12% Convertible 
Promissory Notes.  This principal amount reflects a original issue discount of 15%, which resulted in $1,700,000 in gross 
proceeds to us.  The notes accrue simple interest at the rate of 12% per annum and mature on November 23, 2006.  Under the 
terms of the notes, we are obligated to make minimum payments beginning 120 days following the issuance of the notes.  
The first three monthly minimum payments after the initial 120 day grace period, will each equal 2.5 percent of the principal 
amount.  The next eleven monthly minimum payments will each equal 5 percent of the principal amount.  Any remaining 
outstanding principal or interest is then due upon maturity of the note, which is November 23, 2006. 
 
 Repayment in Stock.  Under the terms of the notes, subject to certain limitations, we have the option of paying our 
minimum monthly payments with our common stock.  Such common stock would be valued at a conversion rate equal to the 
lessor of (i) $0.13 per share or (ii) 85% of the average of the five closing bid prices of our common stock prior to the date we 
make our payment.  However, unless waived by the noteholder, we may not pay the monthly minimum payment in common 
stock if the amount the shares for such payment exceeds 35% of the aggregate daily trading volume for our stock for the 
seven trading days prior to our payment.  We may also not use this feature to the extent that doing so at such time, will cause 
a noteholder to own more than 4.99% of out common stock.  Additionally, we may not exercise this option if an effective 
registration statement covering these shares is not in place.  We have not decided whether to make our minimum monthly 
payments in stock or cash. 
 
 Provided that certain conditions exist, we may force the noteholders to convert some or all of the then outstanding 
principal and unpaid interest into shares of our common stock at the rate of $0.13 per share.  We may only exercise this 
mandatory conversion option if the closing bid of our common stock is more than $0.35 for each for the 10 trading days prior 
to our notice of a mandatory conversion and then only for one day.  Also, the shares to be paid in a mandatory conversion 
may not exceed 35% of the daily trading volume of our common stock for the preceding seven trading days multiplied by our 
common stock's volume weighted average price.  
 
 Conversion Rights.  The noteholder has the right, but not the obligation, to convert all or any portion of the then 
aggregate outstanding principal amount and any interest or fees then due, into shares of our common stock at the rate of 
$0.13 per share.  However, the noteholder may not exercise this option (unless the noteholder this limitation upon 61 days 
prior notice) to the extent that by doing so, it will own more than 4.99% of our outstanding shares of common stock.   
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 Default Provisions.  Upon the occurrence of certain conditions set forth in the notes, the noteholders shall be entitled 
to declare all outstanding principal amounts and unpaid interest immediately due and payable.  In the event of a default, we 
may not pay a minimum monthly payment in stock and we may not force a mandatory conversion. 
 
 Registration of Underlying Common Stock.   To permit the purchasers to resell the common shares underlying the 
convertible notes, we agreed to register 175% of the common shares issuable upon conversion of the convertible notes as 
well as the shares underlying the Class A and Class B warrants described below.  To that end, we agreed that we will prepare 
and file such amendments and supplements to the registration statement and the prospectus as may be necessary in 
accordance with the Securities Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, to keep it effective until the earliest 
of any of the following dates: 
 

• the date after which all of the common shares held by the purchasers or which are issuable by the 
convertible notes or warrants, have been sold by the purchasers pursuant to such registration statement; 

 
• the date after which all of the common shares held by the purchasers or which are issuable by the 

convertible notes or warrants that are covered by the registration statement may be sold, in the opinion of 
our counsel, without restriction under the Securities Act of 1933; or  

 
 • the date that is thirty-six (36) months from the effective date of the registration statement. 
 
 Class A and Class B Warrants 
 
 In connection with the issuance of the 12% Convertible Promissory Notes, we issued to the purchasers of the notes 
six Class A Warrants and five Class B Warrants for each dollar amount of principal amount purchased. 
 
 Class A Warrants 
 
 The Class A Warrants entitle the holder to purchase our common stock for $0.22 per share.  Class A warrants are 
exercisable up to four years from the date of issuance.  If a registration statement covering the common stock underlying the 
warrants is effective at the time of exercise, then the warrants may only be exercised upon payment of cash.    If such 
registration statement is not in effect, then the holder may elect to exercise the warrant via a cashless exercise method.  
Cashless exercise works in the following way.  At the time the holder wishes to exercise their warrants, if the fair market 
value of our common stock is greater than the exercise price, then in lieu of paying cash to satisfy the exercise price, the 
holder can elect to pay the exercise price by reducing the amount of common stock they'll receive by the number of shares 
multiplied by the then fair market value necessary to exercise the warrants.   
 
 For example, if a holder of 1,000 Class A Warrants wishes to exercise all 1,000 warrants, and at the time of exercise 
the fair market value of our common stock is $0.44 per share, then instead of paying $220 to exercise their warrants (1,000 
shares x $0.22 exercise price), the holder would reduce the number of shares they would receive by 500 ($220 divided by the 
fair market value of $0.44 per share).  The holder would then get 500 shares upon exercise of their 1,000 warrants.  The 
holders of the Class A Warrants are under no obligation to exercise their warrants. 
 
 Class B Warrants 
 
 The Class B Warrants entitle the holder to purchase our common stock for $0.20 per share.  Class B warrants are 
exercisable from the date of issuance until 120 days following the day in which a registration statement covering the shares 
underlying the Class B Warrants is effective.  During the period, the warrants may only be exercised upon payment of cash.    
If such registration statement is not in effect, then the holder may elect to exercise the warrant via a cashless exercise method.  
The holders of the Class B Warrants are under no obligation to exercise their warrants. 
 
Anti-Takeover Effects Of Provisions Of The Articles Of Incorporation, Bylaws And Nevada Law 

The following provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of our company could discourage potential 
acquisition proposals and could delay or prevent a change in control of our company.  Such provisions may also have the 
effect of preventing changes in the management of our company, and preventing shareholders from receiving a premium on 
their common stock.   



 

-14- 

Authorized but Unissued Stock.  The authorized but unissued shares of common stock and preferred stock are 
available for future issuance without shareholder approval.  These additional shares may be utilized for a variety of corporate 
purposes, including future public offerings to raise additional capital, corporate acquisitions and employee benefit plans. 

Blank Check Preferred Stock.  The existence of authorized but unissued and unreserved shares of preferred stock 
may enable the Board of Directors to issue shares to persons friendly to current management which would render more 
difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of our company by means of a proxy contest, tender offer, merger or 
otherwise, and thereby protect the continuity of our company’s management. 

Nevada Business Combination Law.  The State of Nevada has enacted legislation that may deter or frustrate 
takeovers of Nevada corporations.  The Nevada Business Combination Law generally prohibits a Nevada corporation from 
engaging in a business combination with an “interested shareholder” (defined generally as any person who beneficially owns 
10% or more of the outstanding voting stock of our company or any person affiliated with such person) for a period of three 
years following the date that such shareholder became an interested shareholder, unless the combination or the purchase of 
shares made by the interested shareholder on the interested shareholder’s date of acquiring shares is approved by the board of 
directors of the corporation before that date.  A corporation may not engage in any combination with an interested 
shareholder of the corporation after the expiration of three years after his date of acquiring shares unless:   

• The combination or the purchase of shares made by the interested shareholder is approved by the board of 
directors of the corporation before the date such interested shareholder acquired such shares;  

• A combination is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of stock representing a majority of the 
outstanding voting power not beneficially owned by the interested shareholder proposing the combination, or 
any affiliate or associate of the interested shareholder proposing the combination, at a meeting called for that 
purpose no earlier than three years after the interested shareholder’s date of acquiring shares; or  

• The aggregate amount of cash and the market value, as of the date of consummation, of consideration other than 
cash to be received per share by all of the holders of outstanding common shares of the corporation not 
beneficially owned by the interested shareholder, satisfies the fair value requirements of Section 78.441 of 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

Special Meetings of Shareholders.  Special meetings of the shareholders of our company may be called by our Board 
of Directors or other persons authorized to do so under Nevada law.  Under applicable Nevada law, shareholders do not have 
the right to call a special meeting of the shareholders.  This may have the effect of discouraging potential acquisition 
proposals and could delay or prevent a change in control of our company by precluding a dissident shareholder from forcing 
a special meeting to consider removing the Board of Directors or otherwise. 

 Transfer Agent and Registrar.  Transfer On-line is the transfer agent and registrar for our common stock.  Its address 
is 317 SW Alder Street, Portland, Oregon, 97204. 
 

INTERESTS OF NAMED EXPERTS AND COUNSEL 
 
 The Lebrecht Group, APLC serves as our legal counsel in connection with this offering. The Lebrecht Group and its 
employees are the owner of 900 shares of our common stock.  Additionally, pursuant to an agreement with the Lebrecht 
Group, we are obligated to issue to them 50,000 shares of our common stock. 
 

DISCLOSURE OF COMMISSION POSITION  
ON INDEMNIFICATION FOR SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES 

 
 Our articles of incorporation limit the liability of directors to the maximum extent permitted by Nevada law.  This 
limitation of liability is subject to exceptions including intentional misconduct, obtaining an improper personal benefit and 
abdication or reckless disregard of director duties.  Our articles of incorporation and bylaws provide that we may indemnify 
our directors, officer, employees and other agents to the fullest extent permitted by law.  Our bylaws also permit us to secure 
insurance on behalf of any officer, director, employee or other agent for any liability arising out of his or her actions in such 
capacity, regardless of whether the bylaws would permit indemnification.  We currently have an insurance policy for our 
officers and directors. 
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 Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to our directors, 
officers and controlling persons pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, we have been advised that in the opinion 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act 
and is, therefore, unenforceable. 
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

Overview 
 
 We are a provider of various services including, telecommunication services such as local and long distance 
telephone services, Internet related services, and business process outsourcing (“BPO”) services.  We were organized as a 
Nevada Corporation on May 17, 1994 and are currently based in Costa Mesa, California.  Our common stock trades on the 
NASDAQ’s OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol "GTCC." 

 
 Our services consist of the following: 
 
Telecommunications Related Services 
 
 We are currently licensed in every state (except Alaska) and the District of Columbia to provide long distance 
telecommunications services.  We primarily service small and medium sized businesses and residential customers throughout 
the United States and have positioned ourselves to be a low-cost provider in the marketplace.  To date, we have operated as a 
switchless1, nonfacilities-based reseller of long distance services.  By committing to purchase large usage volumes from 
national carriers such as Sprint, pursuant to contract tariffs2, we have been able to procure substantial discounts and offer 
low-cost, high-quality long distance services to our customers at rates at or below current standard industry levels.  
 
 We provide long distance telephone service under a variety of plans.  These include outbound service, inbound toll-
free 800 service and calling card service.  We also provide local telephone service as a Competitive Local Exchange Carrier 
(“CLEC”) on a limited basis.  Recently, the Federal Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia, overturned rules 
regulating rates which incumbent local exchange carriers charge competitive local exchange carriers such as the Company.  
Consequently, incumbent local exchange carriers such as SBC, Bellsouth and Verizon are no longer legally required to offer 
us certain network elements which we require to offer local service.  Although we have negotiated commercial agreements 
with several of the incumbent carriers for the provisioning of such service, we have determined that our margins are 
considerably lower than anticipated.  Therefore, we are currently assessing whether we can continue offering our local 
service on a competitive basis. 
 
 Internet Related Services 
 
 We also operate as an Internet Service Provider, offering dial-up access at speeds up to 56kps and Digital Subscriber 
Line (DSL) service.  These services are available to both consumer and business users.  Our Internet related services are 
billed using the same methods as those used for billing our telecommunication services.  Our Internet related services are 
provided pursuant to contracts with third-party providers, who remain competitors with us.  By contracting with third-party 
providers to purchase large quantities of usage volumes, we are able to secure significant discounts, which then allows us to 
offer these services to our end-users at rates equal to or less than our competitors.     
 
Business Process Outsourcing Services 
 
 In 2002 we began exploring various options to reduce our labor and overhead costs as well as explore new markets.  
We determined that by developing a call center and Information Technology ("IT") development center in India, we could 
take advantage of India’s highly skilled but vastly lower labor and operating costs thereby allowing for the reduction of a 
significant portion of our operating overhead.  Despite significant start-up costs associated with the development of our 
outsourcing subsidiary, we believe that these operations will result in significant savings for us.  Additionally, our 
outsourcing operations were designed to provide additional revenue opportunities for us in the Business Process Outsourcing 
Services market (see below).  Our domestic outsourcing operations are conducted through our majority owned subsidiary, 
Perfexa Solutions, Inc., which we call Perfexa-U.S.  Perfexa-U.S.'s subsidiary, Perfexa Solutions Private Limited, a 
corporation formed under the laws of the Republic of India ("Perfexa-India") manages and operates our call center and IT 
development center in New Delhi, India.  We will collectively refer to both Perfexa-U.S. and Perfexa-India as Perfexa in this 
prospectus. 
 
 Our Perfexa operations provide inbound, as well as outbound call center management solutions, IT management 
solutions and business operations management solutions.  Perfexa’s solution is to: 1) capitalize on India’s highly educated, 

                                                           
1 Switchless resellers of long distance services do not utilize any of their own lines, or switching equipment. 
2 Contract tariffs are services and rates based on contracts negotiated with individual customers, but also available to all customers. 
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English speaking workforce; 2) utilize the inherent cost and labor availability advantages within India; and 3) take advantage 
of the low employee turnover rates in India, which will enable us to capitalize on our significant investment in ongoing 
employee training and development programs which will dramatically improve the quality of the customer care experience.  
Future plans are to expand into other low cost countries as business develops. 
 
 Perfexa currently provides customer service for our approximately 93,000 telecommunication and Internet users.  
Perfexa’s IT group currently develops IT solutions for our customer care needs and the integration of our customer care 
system with those of Perfexa’s New Delhi Center.  Perfexa has recently begun offering its services to third parties and plans 
to focus on marketing its outsourced call center services to U.S. based companies.  Perfexa’s IT group will work initially to 
ensure the integration of Perfexa’s systems with those of Perfexa’s clients.  Subsequently, the IT group will develop 
customized software solutions for third parties. 
 
Competition 

Telecommunication Services 
 
 The local and long distance telecommunications industry is highly competitive and affected by the introduction of 
new services by, and the market activities of, major industry participants, including AT&T Corp., Sprint, local exchange 
carriers such as Verizon and SBC Communications, and other national and regional carriers.  Competition in the 
telecommunications business is based upon pricing, customer service, billing services and perceived quality.  We compete 
against various national and regional carriers that are composed of both facilities-based providers (those that carry local and 
long distance traffic on their own equipment) and switchless resellers (those that resale long distance carried by facilities-
based providers or lease local telephone lines and switching equipment from incumbent local carriers) offering essentially the 
same services as us.  Several of our competitors are substantially larger and have greater financial, technical and marketing 
resources.  We believe that we are able to compete with these competitors by providing high quality service at the lowest 
price possible.   
 
 We believe that the pricing strategies and cost structures of the major carriers have resulted historically in their 
charging higher rates to the residential and small-to-medium sized business customer.  Smaller customers typically are not 
able to make the volume commitments necessary to negotiate reduced rates under individualized contracts.  By committing to 
large volumes of traffic, we guarantee traffic to the major long distance carrier while relieving the major long distance carrier 
of the administrative burden of qualifying and servicing large numbers of small-to-medium-sized accounts.  To be successful, 
we believe that we must have lower overhead costs and be able to efficiently market the long distance product, process 
orders, verify credit and provide customer service to a large number of accounts.  Although we believe we have human and 
technical resources to pursue our strategy and compete effectively in this competitive environment, our success will depend 
upon our continued ability to profitably provide high quality, high value services at prices generally competitive with, or 
lower than, those charged by our competitors.  There can be no assurances that we will be able to compete successfully in 
these markets. 
 
 Our long distance traffic is currently carried by Sprint Communications, Inc. which provides our underlying long 
distance network.  Sprint remains a competitor of ours for the provisioning of telecommunications services.   
 
 The Telecommunications Act of 1996 is intended to introduce more competition to U.S. telecommunications 
markets.  The legislation opens the local services market by requiring local exchange companies to permit interconnection to 
their networks and establishing, among other things, their obligations with respect to access, resale, number portability, 
dialing parity, access to rights-of-way and mutual compensation.  The legislation also codifies local exchange carriers' equal 
access and nondiscrimination obligations and preempts most inconsistent state regulation.  The legislation also contains 
special provisions that eliminate restrictions on the Regional Bell Operating Companies (“RBOCs”) providing long distance 
services, which means that we face competition for providing long distance services from well capitalized, well known 
companies that prior to this time could not compete in long distance service. 
 
Internet Related Services 
 
 The market for Internet-based online services is relatively new, intensely competitive and rapidly changing.  Since 
the advent of commercial services on the Internet, the number of Internet Service Providers and online services competing for 
users' attention and spending has proliferated because of, among other reasons, the absence of substantial barriers to entry, 
and we expect that competition will continue to intensify.  Many of our current and potential competitors such as Earthlink, 
Yahoo, AOL, and Microsoft Network have longer operating histories, larger customer bases, greater brand recognition and 
significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources.  These competitors may be able to respond more quickly to 
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new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements and to devote greater resources to the development, 
promotion and sale of their products and services than us. 
 
 We believe that our Internet Related Services are marketed at competitive rates and provide quality and services 
comparable to our competitors.   
 
Business Process Outsourcing Services 
 
 IT Outsourcing.  Electronic Data Systems Corporation (EDS) is currently the largest IT outsourcer.  According to 
IDC, EDS captured over 25% of the $25.7 billion IT outsourcing market in 2000.  Given the strength of the company’s 
competition, maintaining its sizable market share is not easily accomplished; EDS’s most formidable competitor in terms of 
revenue generation is IT outsourcing giant IBM Global Services, which captured 14% of the segment’s market share in 2000.  
Other competitors include Computer Sciences Corporation, Unisys, Affiliated Computer Systems (ACS), CGI Group Inc. and 
Science Applications International Corporation (SAIC). 
 
 Perfexa's ability to obtain business is dependent upon its ability to offer better strategic concepts and technical 
solutions, better value, a quicker response, or a combination of these factors.  Many of these competitors have a more 
substantial amount of resources and therefore have the greater ability to obtain client contracts where large asset purchases or 
investments are required.  In order to sustain competitive prices, Perfexa must operate with efficient and minimal overhead 
while building a stable client base.  India provides the infrastructure to leverage low cost IT solutions. 
 
 Call Center Outsourcing.  Convergys is a leading provider of outsourced services within the billing services and 
software segment as well as the call center services segment. The company handles more than one million customer contacts 
daily through its 28,000 workstations and manages customer interactions that range from initial product information requests, 
account activation and product sales to service renewal, billing inquiries and complaint resolution. Additional competitors 
include Exult, NCO Group, ProBusiness, SITEL Corporation, Synhrgy, Teletech Holdings, Inc, West Corporation, and 
Peopleclick. 
 
 Pricing strategies and cost structures of these major players are generally built on labor rates, technical and operation 
capabilities, and industry and process knowledge.  The required competency is optimization of the business process at hand, 
and pricing models may be based on cost plus incentives, fixed fee, or per transaction.  Perfexa’s initial revenues will be 
derived from the areas of call center and administrative outsourcing services.  Critical competitive factors include the ability 
to measure the quality of job performance and pricing and obtain a solid understanding of clients’ specific job requirements 
through consultative assessments. 
 
 Value-added services is one of the key advantages that Perfexa expects to have.  By leveraging a highly educated 
and cost-effective team in India, this advantage is expected to reduce customers’ business operating costs by 40% to 50% 
lower than onshore outsourcing providers.  To be successful, Perfexa will offer a distinct value proposition to the client---
significant savings by converting fixed employee costs to flexible, variable costs while avoiding large capital expenditures 
required to implement and maintain call center technologies.  The challenge that Perfexa may face is whether they will be 
able to provide high quality service at a cost savings while at the same time be both profitable and lower-priced than their 
competitors.  There can be no assurances that Perfexa will be able to compete successfully in these markets. 
 
Customer Attrition 

 We believe that a high level of customer attrition is a characteristic of the domestic residential long distance, local 
and Internet related industries.  Attrition is attributable to a variety of factors, including the termination of customers by us 
for non-payment and the initiatives of existing and new competitors as they engage in, among other things, national 
advertising campaigns, telemarketing programs and the issuance of cash or other forms of incentives.  Such attrition could 
have a material adverse effect upon our future results of operations and financial conditions. 
 
Dependence on Key Customers 

 We are not dependent on any single customer for a significant portion of our annual sales.  Our customer base 
changes on a continuous basis, as new customers are added or old customers removed. 
 
Major Suppliers 

 We do not own our own long distance network and currently depend upon Sprint Communications Company L.P. to 
provide for the transmission of phone calls by our customers and to provide the call detail records upon which we base our 
customer’s billings.  Pursuant to the terms of our agreement with Sprint, as amended, we are obligated to a monthly 
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minimum of $25,000 through July 26, 2006.  For any period during which we fail to meet our monthly minimum, we would 
be liable for 25% of the difference between our actual usage and the stated minimum.  We may terminate the agreement upon 
90 days written notice provided that we pay a termination fee equal to 50% of the aggregate minimum revenue requirement 
for the remaining term of the contract if we terminate for convenience or by default of us prior to the expiration date which 
was approximately $194,000 as of June 30, 2005.  Sprint may terminate the agreement upon 30 days written notice and then 
only in the event that we are in material breach of the agreement.  However, in cases of nonpayment, Sprint may elect to 
immediately terminate the Agreement. 
 

The termination of our contract with Sprint, the loss of telecommunications services provided by Sprint, or a 
reduction in the quality of service we receive from Sprint would materially harm our business.  In addition, the accurate and 
prompt billing of our customers is dependent upon the timeliness and accuracy of call detail records provided to us by Sprint.  
Our business would be harmed if Sprint's call detail records are inaccurate or are not timely delivered. 
 
 In the event that the services provided by Sprint to us were discontinued, we believe that we would be able to 
identify alternate suppliers that would be able to provide us with sufficient levels of services at terms similar to those of 
Sprint.  Although we have the right to switch our current customers to an alternate underlying carrier, our customers have the 
right to discontinue their service with us at any time.  Accordingly, the termination or non-renewal of our contract tariffs with 
Sprint or the loss of telecommunications services from Sprint may adversely effect our business.  
 
 We do not have our own local telephone network.  We currently lease local telephone lines and switching equipment 
from incumbent local exchange carriers such as SBC..  Previously, these carriers were required by law to lease us local lines 
and switching services at regulated rates.  Recently, court decisions and FCC regulations have eliminated the local carriers' 
legal obligation to provide us with switching services at regulated rates.  Consequently, we have entered into multi-year 
contracts with SBC, Bellsouth & Verizon for the continued provisioning of these services to us at negotiated rates.  In the 
event that the services provided by these local exchange carriers were discontinued, we would be unable, absent significant 
capital expenditures, to continue providing local service.  Currently, these services do not comprise a material portion of our 
operations. 
 
 We do not have our own Internet Network.  Currently, we provide our Internet Service Provider Access services 
pursuant to agreements with third party companies for the provisioning of our Internet Service Provider Access service.  We 
are not obligated to any monthly minimums under these agreements.  Although we believe that our relationship with our 
third-party providers is strong and should remain so with continued contract compliance, the termination of our contract with 
our underlying provider, the loss of Internet services provided by this company, or a reduction in the quality of service we 
receive from this company could have an adverse effect on our internet operations.  In the event that an underlying provider 
was to discontinue its service to us, we believe, based upon discussions that we have had with other Internet service 
providers, that we could negotiate and obtain contracts with Internet service providers at comparable rates. 
 

Regulation 
 
 The provisioning of our communications services is subject to extensive government regulation.  Federal law 
regulates interstate and international telecommunications, while states have jurisdiction over telecommunications that 
originate and terminate within the same state.  Changes in existing policies or regulations in any state or by the FCC could 
materially adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations, particularly if those policies make it more difficult 
for us to obtain service from Sprint or other long distance companies at competitive rates, or otherwise increase the cost and 
regulatory burdens of marketing and providing service.  There can be no assurance that the regulatory authorities in one or 
more states or the FCC will not take action having an adverse effect on our business or financial condition or results of 
operations. 
 
Federal 
 
 We are classified by the FCC as a nondominant carrier.  After the prior reclassification of AT&T as nondominant, 
only the local exchange carriers are classified as dominant carriers among domestic carriers.  The FCC generally does not 
exercise direct oversight over charges for service of nondominant carriers, although it has the statutory power to do so.  
Nondominant carriers are required by statute to offer interstate services under rates, terms, and conditions that are just, 
reasonable and not unreasonably discriminatory.  The FCC has the jurisdiction to act upon complaints filed by third parties, 
or brought on the FCC's own motion, against any common carrier, including nondominant carriers, for failure to comply with 
its statutory obligations.  Nondominant carriers are required to publish and make available service agreements listing their 
rates, terms and conditions of service.  The FCC also has the authority to impose more stringent regulatory requirements on 
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us and change our regulatory classification from nondominant to dominant.  In the current regulatory atmosphere, we believe, 
however, that the FCC is unlikely to do so. 
 
 The FCC imposes only minimal reporting requirements on nondominant resellers, although we are subject to certain 
reporting, accounting and record-keeping obligations.   
 
 At present, the FCC exercises its regulatory authority to set rates primarily with respect to the rates of dominant 
carriers, and it has increasingly relaxed its control in this area. Even when AT&T was classified as a dominant carrier, the 
FCC most recently employed a "price cap" system, which essentially exempted most of AT&T's services, including virtually 
all of its commercial and 800 services, from traditional rate of return regulation because the FCC believes that these services 
were subject to adequate competition. 
 
State 
 
 We are subject to varying levels of regulation in the states in which we currently provide local or intrastate 
telecommunications services.  The vast majority of the states require us to apply for certification to provide local or intrastate 
telecommunications services, or at least to register or to be found exempt from regulation, before commencing such service.  
The vast majority of states also require us to file and maintain detailed tariffs listing our rates for local and intrastate service.  
Many states also impose various reporting requirements and/or require prior approval for transfers of control of certified 
carriers, corporate reorganizations, acquisitions of telecommunications operations, assignments of carrier assets, including 
subscriber bases, carrier stock offerings and incurrence by carriers of significant debt obligations.  Certificates of authority 
can generally be conditioned, modified, canceled, terminated or revoked by state regulatory authorities for failure to comply 
with state law and the rules, regulations and policies of the state regulatory authorities.  Fines and other penalties, including 
the return of all monies received for intrastate traffic from residents of a state, may be imposed for such violations.  In certain 
states, prior regulatory approval may be required for acquisitions of telecommunications operations.   
 
 As we expand our efforts to provide local and long distance services, we will have to remain attentive to relevant 
federal and state regulations.  FCC rules prohibit switching (also commonly known as “Slamming”) of a consumer’s service 
provider without the consumer’s consent and specify how that consent can be obtained.  Most states have consumer 
protection laws that further define the framework within which our marketing activities must be conducted.  We intend to 
comply fully with all laws and regulations, and the constraints of federal and state restrictions could impact the success of 
direct marketing efforts. 
 
 We are not currently subject to any State or Federal regulation with respect to our Internet related services.  
However, there can be no assurances that we will not be subject to such regulations in the future.  We are not aware of any 
pending legislation that would have a material adverse effect on our operations. 
 
 Our domestic BPO operations are not currently subject to any State or Federal regulations.  However, our Perfexa-
India operations are regulated by the policies of the Indian government.  Indian law regulates call center activities requiring 
the registration of call centers with the Indian Department of Telecommunications.  Our Perfexa-India subsidiary has 
obtained all required permits and licenses to operate its call center.  Pursuant to such licenses, however, we must notify and 
obtain permission from the Indian DOT prior to expansion of our call center.  Additionally, in times of war, the Indian 
government may have the power to appropriate Perfexa-India's facilities. 
 
Patents, Trademarks, Licenses 

 We have registered service marks for our Perfexa Solutions business.  However, we do not depend upon any other 
patents or trademarks to conduct our business.  We are required to hold licenses with the Federal Communication 
Commission for the operation of our telecommunication services.  We are also required to hold licenses in the states in which 
we provide intrastate long distance services.  Currently, we are licensed in every state (except Alaska) and the District of 
Columbia to provide intrastate services and hold licenses in nineteen states to provide local service.  Our federal and state 
telecommunication licenses are of indefinite length and will remain effective so long as we comply with all Federal and State 
regulations. 
 



 

-21- 

Cost of Compliance with Environmental Regulations 

 We currently have no costs associated with compliance with environmental regulations.  However, there can be no 
assurances that we will not incur such costs in the future. 
 
Number of Employees 

 As of June 30, 2005, we employed approximately 25 people on a full time basis in the United States and our 
subsidiary employs approximately 200 people on a full time basis in India. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
 

 The following discussion contains certain forward-looking statements that are subject to business and economic 
risks and uncertainties, and our actual results could differ materially from those forward-looking statements.  The following 
discussion regarding our financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto.  
 
General Overview 

 Our principal line of business is to provide long distance telephone and value-added services for small and medium-
sized businesses and residential customers throughout the United States.  Our strategy has been to build a subscriber base 
without committing capital or management resources to construct our own network and transmission facilities.  This strategy 
has allowed us to add customers without being limited by capacity, geographic coverage, or configuration of any particular 
network that we might have developed. 
 
 We also provide a number of Internet related services such as Internet access via Dial-Up and Digital Subscriber 
Line.  Our services are marketed nationwide, through sales affiliates, affinity groups, independent sales agents and 
telemarketing. 
 
 Our revenues consist of revenues from the sale of telecommunications, Internet, and BPO services. 
Telecommunication revenues are generated primarily from monthly recurring charges for local service and when customers 
make long distance telephone calls from their business or residential telephones.  Internet related services are typically billed 
at a flat rate and are billed in advance.  Revenues are recognized in the period earned.  BPO services revenues are billed each 
month based on a client contract that provides for either a dedicated or per minute rate as the services are rendered. 
 

Cost of sales consists of telecommunications service costs and the costs of providing Internet access, and BPO 
services.  Local telecommunications service costs are paid by us on a per line basis. Long distance telecommunications 
service costs are based on our customers' long distance usage.  We pay our carriers based on the type of call, time of call, 
duration of call, the terminating telephone number, and terms of our contract in effect at the time of the call.  BPO service 
cost of sales consists of labor and its related support costs directly associated with a service contract.  General and 
administrative expenses consist of the cost of customer acquisition (including costs paid for third-party verification), 
customer service, billing, cost of information systems and personnel required to support our operations and growth. 

 Depending on the extent of our future growth, we may experience significant strain on our management, personnel, 
and information systems.  We will need to implement and improve operational, financial, and management information 
systems.  In addition, we are implementing new information systems that will provide better record keeping, customer service 
and billing.  However, there can be no assurance that our management resources or information systems will be sufficient to 
manage any future growth in our business, and the failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
results of operations and financial condition. 
 
Results of Operations of the Company 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004 
 
 Revenues – Revenues decreased by $1,934,738 or 17.7% to $9,022,850 for the year ended June 30, 2005 from 
$10,957,588 for the year ended June 30, 2004.  The decrease was due primarily to a decrease in telecommunications revenues 
of $1,845,088 and a decrease in Internet revenues of $191,315, offset partially by the increase in BPO revenues of $101,665.  
As of June 30, 2005, we had approximately 89,033 telecommunications customers and 3,330 internet customers, with usage 
of long distance services of approximately 106,045,000 minutes for the year ended June 30, 2004 as compared with 
approximately 80,397 telecommunications customers and 5,666 internet customers, with usage of long distance services of 
approximately 156,772,000 minutes for the year ended June 30, 2004.  
 
 We believe that the reduction in minutes are a result of several recent competitive pressures including: the increase 
in the number of low-priced long distance calling plans currently available, the expansion of bundled local/long distance 
services offered by Local Exchange Carriers and/or Competitive Local Exchange Carriers, and the migration of traditional 
long distance usage to cellular long distance and internet usage.  In addition, the difficulties we recently experienced as a 
result of our change in underlying providers may have contributed to this reduction in minutes (see Change In Primary 
Supplier below).  In an effort to increase revenue, we have stepped up our outbound telemarketing campaigns and are 
exploring alternative markets such as providing wireless telecommunication services. 
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 Additionally, we are continuing to focus on developing third party revenue for our Perfexa subsidiary.  During the 
year ended June 30, 2004, we began widespread marketing of our BPO services to third parties and have begun securing 
client contracts for these services.  Perfexa generated third-party revenues of $180,309 and $78,644 for the year ended June 
30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.   
 
 Cost of Sales - Cost of sales decreased by $771,438 or 16.0% to $4,064,939 for the year ended June 30, 2005 from 
$4,836,377 for the year ended June 30, 2004.  The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in carrier costs associated with 
decreased telecommunications service revenues of $771,013, offset partially by the increase in carrier costs associated with 
the increase in our cost of providing telecommunications service of $316,265 (see Change In Primary Supplier below and to 
our new local phone services which will have a higher cost as compared to our long distance products) for the year ended 
June 30, 2005 (see Change In Primary Supplier below).  In addition, for the year ended June 30, 2005, the costs associated 
with Internet services decreased $377,151 and the costs associated with BPO services increased $60,461.  As a percentage of 
revenue, cost of sales increased to 45.1% from 44.1% for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively, primarily as 
a result of the increase in telecommunications cost of sales as a percentage of telecommunications revenues to 45.6% for the 
year ended June 30, 2005 from 41.8% for the year ended June 30, 2004 (see Change In Primary Supplier below), offset 
partially by the decrease in internet cost of sales as a percentage of internet revenues to 30.5% for the year ended June 30, 
2005 from 71.6% (due to monthly minimum purchase requirements with MCI) for the year ended June 30, 2004.  This results 
in a gross margin of 54.9% as compared to 55.9% for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 
 Perfexa incurred third-party cost of sales of $119,700 and $59,239 for the year ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. 
 
 Operating expenses - Operating expenses decreased by $198,027 or 3.0% to $6,473,018 for the year ended June 30, 
2005 from $6,671,045 for the year ended June 30, 2004 primarily due to our shift of customer service and information 
technology development to our Perfexa subsidiary. 
 
 Operating expenses, individually net of Perfexa related costs, for the year ended June 30, 2005 were comprised 
primarily of $923,195 in payroll and related expenses paid to employees; billing related costs of $658,771; rent of $154,010; 
bad debt of $717,233; depreciation expense of $108,983; amortization of previously issued options to employees valued at 
$110,249; and $1,430,477 of other operating expenses, primarily sales commissions, internal telephone usage, consulting 
services, costs of third party verification for newly acquired customers, internet support costs and audit and legal costs.   
 
 Perfexa related operating expenses for the year ended June 30, 2005 were comprised primarily of $1,373,835 in 
payroll and related expenses paid to employees; rent of $251,136; depreciation expense of $194,484; and $550,645 of other 
operating expenses, primarily office maintenance and supplies.   
 
 Operating expenses, individually net of Perfexa related costs, for the year ended June 30, 2004 were comprised 
primarily of $1,519,161 in payroll and related expenses paid to employees; billing related costs of $709,824; rent of 
$189,505; penalties and interest in connection with past due payroll taxes of prior periods of $135,000; bad debt of $159,467; 
sales commissions of $132,770; depreciation expense of $125,083; amortization of previously issued options to employees 
valued at $110,250; and $7,580 of other operating expenses, primarily investor relations, internal telephone usage, consulting 
services, costs of third party verification for newly acquired customers, internet support costs and audit and legal costs.   
 
 Perfexa related operating expenses for the year ended June 30, 2004 were comprised primarily of $1,338,258 in 
payroll and related expenses paid to employees; rent of $244,449; depreciation expense of $172,973; and $1,826,725 of other 
operating expenses, office maintenance and supplies. 
 
 Interest expense – Net interest expense decreased by $139,941 to $1,122,756 for the year ended June 30, 2005 from 
$1,262,697 for the year ended June 30, 2004.  The decrease was primarily due to the interest owed on notes payable, offset 
partially by the reduction in interest owed on outstanding balances due to WorldCom. 
 
 Gain on extinguishment of debt – Gain on extinguishment of debt was $6,301,935 due to a one-time credit of 
$6,934,411 resulting from our settlement with MCI, offset partially by one-time charges of $632,476 resulting from the 
restructuring of a note payable. 
 
 Net income - Net income increased $5,409,622 to $3,679,674, or $0.16 per share for the year ended June 30, 2005, 
from a net loss of $1,729,988, or $(0.08) loss per share, for the year ended June 30, 2004, primarily as a result of a gain on 
extinguishment of debt (see above).   
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 Assets and Liabilities - Assets increased by $46,663 to $1,631,149 at June 30, 2005 from $1,584,486 at June 30, 
2004.  The increase was due to net increases in accounts receivables of $155,771, and prepaid expenses of $12,905, net of 
decreases in deposits of $36,765, property and equipment of $12,174; cash of $73,072, and other assets of $2.  Liabilities 
decreased by $5,409,098 to $3,928,571 at June 30, 2005 from $9,337,669 at June 30, 2004.  The decrease was due to 
decreases in notes payable of $4,508,050, and accounts payable and accrued expenses of $910,513, primarily as a result of 
our settlement with MCI, and obligations under capital lease of $13,398 primarily due to purchase of equipment, net of 
increase in accrued payroll and payroll related liabilities of $22,863, associated with the decrease in telecommunications 
service costs, Internet service provider access fees and customer service operations as a result of the decrease in customers. 
 
 Stockholders’ deficit - Stockholders' deficit decreased by $(5,498,579881) to $2,297,422 at June 30, 2005 from 
$7,796,001 at June 30, 2004.  The decrease was attributable to a net profit of $3,679,674 (see above) for the year ended June 
30, 2005, amortization of compensation expense related to previously issued/options to employees in the amount of 
$110,249, the fair market value of stock and warrants issued pursuant to notes payable of $1,490,827, the issuance of $60,000 
of our restricted common stock, and a cumulative translation adjustment of $162,829, net of the cancellation of previously 
issued stock of $23,000. 
 
Change in Primary Supplier 
 
 As previously reported, on July 7, 2004 we initiated a system wide conversion of our underlying long distance 
provider from MCI to Sprint (the "Conversion").  As a result, we initially experienced an approximate 16% reduction in our 
call volumes and corresponding revenues.  We believe that we have resolved all outstanding technical issues relating to this 
conversion and continue to market our services in order to re-acquire or add new customers.  There can be no assurances that 
we will be able to re-acquire or add sufficient numbers of customers to compensate for the reduction incurred by the 
Conversion. 
 
 Additionally, the cost of Sprint's services to us are higher than those of MCI's and will affect our future gross 
margins.  We are attempting to renegotiate more favorable pricing terms with Sprint.  Alternatively we are re-examining the 
rates we charge our customers.  There can be no assurances that we will be able to negotiate more favorable rates with Sprint.  
Also, an increase in our rates to end-users may have a detrimental effect in customer acquisition and retention.   
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources  

 General – Currently, billings from accounts receivable are sufficient to meet our monthly operating requirements.  
However, the amounts actually collected from our customers is not sufficient to fully pay all of our monthly operating 
expenses (see "Cash Flows from Operating Activities" below).  Recently, we restructured approximately $7.7 million in 
accrued liabilities consisting of notes payable, accrued interest and other outstanding accounts payable, into new short and 
long term debt (see below) that resulted in the elimination of approximately $6.9 million in accrued liabilities.  Consequently, 
beginning in September 2005, we were required to begin making monthly principal and interest payments on these new 
obligations where we previously did not.  Although this financing reduced our overall debt, it did not materially increase our 
cash flow.  As a result, we may not have sufficient cash flow to fully support daily operations and service our debt 
obligations and will need to increase revenues and customers as detailed above, as well as decrease bad debt, or acquire 
alternate financing. 
 
 Cash Flows From Operations Activities - Net cash provided by operating activities of $54,340 in fiscal year 2005 
was primarily due to net income of $3,697,674; offset partially by changes in operating assets and liabilities, principally 
decreases in accounts receivable of $880,285, and prepaid expenses of $12,905, offset partially by accounts payable and 
accrued expenses of $2,335,314, accrued payroll and related taxes of $22,863, and deposits of $917; amortization of 
previously issued options vesting to employees in the current period of $110,249; the fair market value of stock issued in 
connection with a note payable of $20,827; depreciation and amortization expense of $303,467; the increase in bad debt 
expense related to accounts receivable of $724,514, and the amortization of debt discount of $76,458, offset partially by the 
gain on extinguishment of debt of $6,301,935, and minority interest of $42,818. 
 
 With our recent entry into the local telephone market, an increasing number of our customers have elected to pay 
their monthly bills by check.  Previously, the majority of our long distance customers elected to pay their bills by credit card.  
Payment by credit card allows us to collect our billings within days of billing our customers.  Payment by check, however, 
typically results in collection times in excess of thirty days.  In addition, payment by credit card allows us to quickly 
determine whether a customer is going to pay their bill whereas, with payment by check, this determination can take in 
excess of thirty days.  As a result, we have experienced a significant increase in the amount of bad debt associated with our 
local product. 
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 In an effort to reduce this bad debt and increase collections, we have recently begun implementing several corrective 
measures.  These include: determining a customer's credit rating prior to provisioning service; strengthening our internal and 
third-party collection efforts by increasing the number of our collection employees and reducing the timeframe before 
collection efforts are initiated; and reporting delinquent customers to the appropriate credit bureaus.  We anticipate that these 
measures will increase our cash flows from operating activities.  However, if we are unsuccessful in our efforts to increase 
our cash collections or increase revenues and customers, we will not have sufficient cash flows to fund our monthly 
operations as well as service our debt obligations.   
 
 Cash Flows From Investing Activities - Net cash used in investing activities of $224,732 in fiscal year 2005 funded 
purchases of property and equipment. 
 
 Cash Flows From Financing Activities - Net cash provided by financing activities of $96,970 in fiscal year 2005 
was primarily due to net borrowings on notes payable of $945,000, and the proceeds from the sale of stock of $60,000, offset 
partially by principal repayments on notes payable of $871,632, principal repayments under capital lease obligations of 
$13,398, and the cancellation of previously issued stock of $23,000. 
 
 Outstanding Debt Obligations and Recent Debt Restructurings - In May and July 2005, we entered into 
subscription agreements, as amended, with certain third party investors for the sale of convertible notes, $2,000,000 principal 
amount along with shares of our common stock and warrants, resulting in gross proceeds of $1.7 million, less offering costs 
of $141,825.  The notes accrue simple interest of 12% per annum and may be converted into shares of our common stock.  
Under the terms of the notes, we must begin repayment of principal and interest beginning in September 2005.   
 
 On June 7, 2005, the Company borrowed $20,000, bearing no interest, from an employee of the Company for 
working capital purposes.  The borrowing was repaid on July 22, 2005. 
 
 In May 2005, we restructured $927,524 in amounts due on a past due note payable and corresponding accrued 
interest and penalties into a new long term note payable, principal amount $1,200,000.  The new note accrues simple interest 
in the amount of 12% per annum.  We are obligated to pay accrued interest monthly, but then only if, after deducting all then 
current obligations, we at that time have at least $300,000 in available cash. 
 
 In February 2005, we negotiated the settlement of all amounts due to MCI WorldCom, our former underlying 
network provider, totaling approximately $7,700,000 in exchange for the payment of $769,000.  On May 23, 2005, we paid 
the settlement amount and satisfied the terms of the settlement agreement.   
 
 On June 8, 2004, we borrowed $50,000 for working capital purposes from an unrelated third party.  The note was 
originally to be repaid plus interest of $7,500 on September 7, 2004.  On November 18, 2004, we restructured the note.  
Under the new terms of the note, we are required to make monthly payments of $5,000 plus simple interest of 10% until all 
principal and accrued interest is repaid.  We are currently in discussions with the noteholder to restructure the remaining 
payments.  As of the date of this filing, there remains $17,387 outstanding under the note. 
 
 On December 9, 2003, we borrowed $200,000 for working capital purposes from an unrelated third party.  The note 
was to be repaid plus interest of $21,333 on April 8, 2004.  On May 17, 2004, the note, as amended, was extended to July 19, 
2004.  On July 1, 2005, we agreed to resolve all outstanding amounts owed under the note via the payment of $30,000 plus 
bi-weekly payments of $8,000.  The outstanding principal and accrued interest, which, at the time of the agreement totaled 
$167,000 will accrue simple interest at the rate of 10% per annum until fully repaid.  As of the date of this report, we have 
made all payments as required in the note.       
 
 On October 2, 2002, we borrowed $100,000 for working capital purposes from an unrelated third party.  All 
amounts owed, with the exception of $10,000 has been repaid.  We currently are in the process of renegotiating payment 
terms.   
 
 We maintain a revolving line of credit of $45,000 to finance the purchase of computer equipment.  The revolving 
line of credit provides for us to make monthly payments of $731, including interest at a rate of approximately 14.74%.  The 
total outstanding balance on the revolving line of credit was $27,110 and is included in notes payable in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2005.  As of the date of this report, we have made all payments as required in the 
revolving line of credit. 
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 Equity Financing - On December 28, 2004, we sold 1,000,000 shares of our restricted common stock to an 
unrelated accredited third-party investor for $60,000.  In addition, we agreed to issue to the third party, warrants to purchase 
up to 250,000 shares of our common stock.  The warrants have an exercise price of $0.11 per share.  The warrants vest 
immediately and are exercisable for two (2) years from the date of issuance and contain piggy-back registration rights.  No 
consulting expense was recognized due to the fact the warrants were issued in connection with equity fund raising activities. 
 
 Intercompany Activities – Since inception, Perfexa-U.S. and its Indian subsidiary Perfexa-India have relied upon us 
for funding and for administrative services required in the development of their business plan.  Perfexa is obligated to 
reimburse us for such advances and their share of such expenses.  As of June 30, 2005, we have advanced Perfexa-U.S. 
$5,259,851 in cash and equipment, of which $661,504 was for the purchase of equipment and $4,598,347 for operating 
expenses.  In addition, we have allocated $2,080,503 of shared administrative expenses to Perfexa-U.S.  Cash and equipment 
advances accrue interest of 10% per annum and are due upon demand.  Shared administrative expenses accrue no interest and 
are also due upon demand. 
 
 Pursuant to a Master Services Agreement between Perfexa-US and us, Perfexa provides call center and IT 
development services to us on a cost plus 5% basis.  As of June 30, 2005, Perfexa-U.S. has billed us $2,733,004 for such 
services. 
 

As of June 30, 2005, Perfexa-U.S. owes us $4,445,450, net of $161,900 repaid by Perfexa-U.S. from funds raised 
and $2,733,004 in amounts billed for services rendered. 

 Stock Purchase Agreement - Pursuant to a common stock purchase agreement (“Agreement”) with Bluefire Capital, 
Inc. (“Bluefire”), we are entitled to issue and sell common stock to Bluefire in the form of draws for up to an aggregate of 
$20,000,000, as defined in the Agreement, from time to time during a three year period beginning on the date of the filing of 
an effective registration statement.  On November 20, 2001, we filed a registration statement under the Securities Act with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) for 15,000,000 shares available to be issued to Bluefire under the 
Agreement should we choose to draw down on these shares and on January 23, 2002, the registration statement was declared 
effective.  Pursuant to the Agreement, we must draw a minimum of $500,000 by January 23, 2005, or we shall be required to 
pay liquidated damages equal to one-half of the amount not drawn-down.   
 
 On December 14, 2004, Bluefire and us agreed to terminate the agreement.  In addition, Bluefire agreed to waive the 
Liquidated Damages in exchange for a one time payment by us of $10,000, to be paid by January 17, 2005.  On January 17, 
2005, we paid the $10,000 termination fee. 
 
Capital Expenditures 
 
 We expect to purchase approximately $200,000 of additional equipment on top of the purchases already made in 
connection with the expansion of our business.  In addition, as previously discussed, we expanded our operations into the 
Republic of India through our Perfexa subsidiary.  We expect to continue funding this expansion with an additional $200,000 
to Perfexa primarily for leasehold improvements, equipment (computer and telephone), furniture and fixtures, and deposits.  
Because we presently do not have the capital for such expenditures, we will have to raise these funds.  (See Financing in this 
section).  
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
 
 We do not currently have any off-balance sheet arrangements. 
 
Subsidiaries 
 
 We have formed four subsidiaries, of which only one is active (see below), that offer different products and services.  
They are managed separately because each business requires different technology and/or marketing strategies. 
 
 The four subsidiaries are: CallingPlanet.com, Inc., ecallingcards.com, Inc., Curbside Communications, Inc., and 
Perfexa Solutions, Inc.   
 
 CallingPlanet.com, Inc. was set up to offer international calling using a PC to phone connection.  It is currently 
inactive.  ecallingcards.com, Inc. offers prepaid calling cards purchased over the internet.  It is currently inactive.  Curbside 
Communications, Inc., currently inactive, has been set up for future strategic purposes which are currently in the planning 
process.  Perfexa Solutions, Inc. offers business process outsourcing services. 
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Going Concern 
 
 Our independent certified public accountants have stated in their report included in this Form 10-KSB, that we have 
incurred operating losses in the last two years, and have a significant stockholders’ deficit.  These conditions raise substantial 
doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.   
 
Inflation 

 We believe that inflation has not had a material effect on our results of operations. 
 
Critical Accounting Policies 
 
 The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires us to make judgments, assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts 
reported in our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes.  The amounts of assets and liabilities reported 
on our balance sheet and the amounts of revenues and expenses reported for each of our fiscal periods are affected by 
estimates and assumptions, which are used for, but not limited to, the accounting for revenue recognition, accounts 
receivable, doubtful accounts, deferred tax asset valuation allowances, and valuation of securities, options, and warrants 
issued.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.  The following critical accounting policies are significantly affected 
by judgments, assumptions and estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements: 
 
 Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
Significant estimates made by us are, among others, provisions for losses on accounts receivable, realizability of long-lived 
assets, estimates for deferred income tax asset valuations, and valuation estimates for securities, options, and warrants issued. 
 
 Revenue and Related Cost Recognition - We recognize revenue during the month in which services or products are 
delivered, as follows: 
 

Telecommunications related services 
 

Our telecommunications service revenues are generated primarily when customers make long distance telephone 
calls from their business or residential telephones for long distance service, monthly recurring charges for local 
service, or by using any of our telephone calling cards.   

 
Telecommunication services cost of sales consists of the cost of long distance service provided by Sprint based on 
usage and on a per line basis for local service. 

 
Internet related services 

 
Internet service revenues consist of monthly fees charged to subscribers for Internet access and are recognized in the 
period service access is provided.  Internet service cost of sales consists of the cost of providing Internet access. 
 
BPO services 

 
BPO service revenues consist of amounts billed each month based on a client contract that provides for either a 
dedicated or per minute rate as the services are rendered.  BPO service cost of sales consists of labor and its related 
support costs directly associated with a service contract. 

 
 In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 101 (“SAB 101”), 
“Revenue Recognition,” which outlines the basic criteria that must be met to recognize revenue and provide guidance for 
presentation of revenue and for disclosure related to revenue recognition policies in financial statements filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission.  SAB 101 was later superseded by SAB 104.  We believe our revenue recognition 
policies conform to SAB 104. 
 
 Stock-Based Compensation - We account for stock-based compensation issued to employees using the intrinsic 
value based method as prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 ("APB 25"), "Accounting for Stock Issued 
to Employees."  Under the intrinsic value based method, compensation is the excess, if any, of the fair value of the stock at 
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the grant date or other measurement date over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.  Compensation, if any, 
is recognized over the applicable service period, which is usually the vesting period.   
 
 SFAS No. 123 ("SFAS 123"), "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" if fully adopted, changes the method of 
accounting for employee stock-based compensation plans to the fair value based method.  For stock options and warrants, fair 
value is determined using an option pricing model that takes into account the stock price at the grant date, the exercise price, 
the expected life of the option or warrant and the annual rate of quarterly dividends.  Compensation expense, if any, is 
recognized over the applicable service period, which is usually the vesting period. 
 
 SFAS No. 148 (“SFAS 148”), "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure, an 
amendment of FASB Statement No. 123," was issued in December 2002 and is effective for fiscal years ending after 
December 15, 2002. SFAS 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value method of 
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS 
123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for 
stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. 
 
 The adoption of the accounting methodology of SFAS 123 is optional and we have elected to continue accounting 
for stock-based compensation issued to employees using APB 25; however, pro forma disclosures, as if we adopted the cost 
recognition requirements under SFAS 123, are required to be presented. 
 
 In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123-R, “Share-Based Payment,” which requires that the 
compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions (including the cost of all employee stock options) be 
recognized in the financial statements.  That cost will be measured based on the estimated fair value of the equity or liability 
instruments issued.  SFAS No. 123-R covers a wide range of share-based compensation arrangements including share 
options, restricted share plans, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans.  
SFAS No.123-R replaces SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and supersedes Accounting 
Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”  As originally issued, SFAS No. 123 
established as preferable a fair-value-based method of accounting for share-based payment transactions with employees.  
However, that pronouncement permitted entities to continue applying the intrinsic-value model of APB Opinion 25, provided 
that the financial statements disclosed the pro forma net income or loss based on the preferable fair-value method. 
 
 Small Business Issuers are required to apply SFAS No. 123-R in the first annual reporting period that begins after 
December 15, 2005.  Thus, our consolidated financial statements will reflect an expense for (a) all share-based compensation 
arrangements granted after July 1, 2006 and for any such arrangements that are modified, cancelled, or repurchased after that 
date, and (b) the portion of previous share-based awards for which the requisite service has not been rendered as of that date, 
based on the grant-date estimated fair value. 
 

Translation of Foreign Currencies - We use the U.S. dollar as our functional and reporting currency while our 
foreign subsidiary uses the Indian Rupee as its functional currency.  Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are 
translated into U.S. dollars at year-end exchange rates, and revenues and expenses are translated at average rates prevailing 
during the year or other period presented.  In accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation”, net exchange 
gains or losses resulting from such translation are excluded from net loss, but are included in comprehensive loss and 
accumulated in a separate component of stockholders’ deficit.   
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DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 We lease a total of 5,137 square feet of office space for our headquarters and domestic customer service operations 
in Costa Mesa, California at a monthly rental rate of $9,697 pursuant to a one-year lease agreement ending February 28, 
2006.   
 
 Effective October 1, 2002, Perfexa-India began leasing approximately 15,422 square feet of office space in Gurgaon, 
India, a suburb of New Delhi, at a monthly rate of Rs. 524,348 (approximately $11,400) per month.  This facility serves as 
Perfexa-India’s call center, IT development center, and administrative offices.  The lease is for a term of three years with an 
option to renew for an additional three year term with an increase in the rental rate of 20%.  Effective October 1, 2002, 
Perfexa-India also entered into a maintenance agreement for their New Delhi facility.  The maintenance agreement obligates 
Perfexa-India to pay a monthly maintenance fee of Rs. 138,798 (approximately $3,000) per month for the first twelve 
months.  Thereafter, the monthly fee will be calculated based on the actual costs of maintenance (including electricity and 
water) plus a 20% mark-up. 

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

 As of March 31, 2005, we had net advances to Eric Clemons, our President, of $60,306. The advances accrue 
interest at 10% (no interest income has been recorded as of March 31, 2005) and are due on demand.  We have reclassified 
the note receivable as an increase to stockholders’ deficit in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets at 
March 31, 2005.  There have been no additional advances since June 2001. 
 
 In February, 2003, Perfexa-U.S. entered into a Master Services Agreement with us whereby Perfexa-U.S. agreed to 
provide call center outsourcing and Information Technology systems development for GTC.  Pursuant to the terms of the 
Agreement, GTC has agreed to reimburse Perfexa-U.S. for such services on a cost plus 5% basis.  Work on this agreement 
commenced May 1, 2003 upon completion of the Perfexa call center.  As of March 31, 2005, Perfexa-U.S. has billed us 
$2,274,766 for such services. 
 
 Since inception, Perfexa-U.S. and their Indian subsidiary Perfexa-India has relied upon us for funding and for 
administrative services required in the development of their business plan.  Perfexa is obligated to reimburse us for such 
advances and their share of such expenses.  As of March 31, 2005, the Company has advanced Perfexa-U.S. $4,770,390 in 
cash and equipment, of which $661,504 was for the purchase of equipment and $4,108,886 for operating expenses.  In 
addition, the Company has allocated $2,080,503 of shared administrative expenses to Perfexa-U.S.  Cash and equipment 
advances accrue interest of 10% per annum and are due upon demand.  Shared administrative expenses accrue no interest and 
are also due upon demand.   
 
 As of March 31, 2005, Perfexa-U.S. owes us $4,414,227 net of $161,900 repaid by Perfexa-U.S. from funds raised 
and $2,274,766 in amounts billed for services rendered. 
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MARKET PRICE OF AND DIVIDENDS ON THE REGISTRANT'S  
COMMON EQUITY AND OTHER SHAREHOLDER MATTERS 

 
 The following table sets forth the high and low bid prices for shares of our common stock for the periods noted, as 
reported by the National Daily Quotation Service and the NASDAQ Bulletin Board.  Quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, 
without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not represent actual transactions.    
 
           Calendar                                    Bid Prices 
 Year                   Period            High  Low 
 
 2002  First Quarter  0.27  0.17 
   Second Quarter  0.30  0.15 
   Third Quarter  0.25  0.15 
   Fourth Quarter  0.22  0.13 
  
 2003  First Quarter  0.23  0.13 
   Second Quarter  0.24  0.14 
   Third Quarter  0.19  0.13 
   Fourth Quarter  0.14  0.09 
 
 2004  First Quarter  0.13  0.07 
   Second Quarter  0.18  0.07 
   Third Quarter  0.08  0.03 
   Fourth Quarter  0.16  0.03 
 
 2005  First Quarter  0.23  0.07 
   Second Quarter  0.20  0.15 
   Third Quarter  0.18  0.10 
 
 On September 30, 2005, the last sales price per share of our common stock, as reported by the Nasdaq Over-The-
Counter Electronic Bulletin Board, was $0.13. 
 
Number of Shareholders 
 
 The number of beneficial holders of record of our common stock as of the close of business on September 30, 2005 
was approximately 400.  Many of the shares of our common stock are held in "street name" and consequently reflect 
numerous additional beneficial owners. 
 
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans 

 
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS AS OF JUNE 30, 2004 

 
 (a) (b) (c) 
 
 
 
 
Plan category 

Number of Securities 
to be Issued upon Exercise of 

outstanding Options, 
Warrants and Rights 

 (#) 

Weighted-average 
Exercise Price of 

Outstanding Options, 
Warrants and Rights 

($) 

Number of Securities 
 Remaining Available for Future Issuance 

Under Equity Compensation Plans (excluding 
Securities reflected in Column (a)) 

(#) 

Equity compensation plans 
approved by security holders 

1,931,6001 $0.47 3,792,0002 

Equity compensation plans 
not approved by security 
holders 

1,372,400 $0.53 0 

Total 3,304,000 $0.49 3,792,000 

(1)  consists of 723,600 options issued under the 1999 Stock Option Plan and 1,208,000 options issued under the 2001 Stock 
Incentive Plan. 

(2)  does not include any ungranted options under the 1999 Omnibus Stock Option Plan as this plan was terminated. 
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Dividend Policy 
 
 To date, we have declared no cash dividends on our common stock, and we do not expect to pay cash dividends in 
the next term.  We intend to retain future earnings, if any, to provide funds for operation of our business. 
 

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

 The Summary Compensation Table below shows certain compensation information for services rendered in all 
capacities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003.  Other than as set forth herein, no executive officer's 
salary and bonus exceeded $100,000 in any of the applicable years.  The following information includes the dollar value of 
base salaries, bonus awards, the number of stock options granted and certain other compensation, if any, whether paid or 
deferred. 
 

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 
 

          Annual Compensation   Long Term Compensation 
                  Awards                  Payouts   

 
 
Name and 
Principal 
Position 

 
 
 
 
Year 

 
 
 

Salary 
($) 

 
 
 

Bonus 
($) 

 
Other 

Annual 
Compensation 

($) 

 
Restricted 

Stock 
Awards  

($) 

 
Securities 

Underlying 
Options 
SARs (#) 

 
 

LTIP 
Payouts 

($) 

 
All 

Other 
Compensation 

($) 
 
Paul Sandhu 
(CEO) 

 
2005 
(6/30)  

 
169,400 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
925,000 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
 

 
2004 
(6/30)  

 
184,800 

 
-0- 

 
5,0001 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
7,1082 

 
 

 
2003 
(6/30) 

 
184,800 

 
-0- 

 
40,0001 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
Eric Clemons 
(President) 

 
2005 
(6/30)  

 
160,233 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
600,000 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
 

 
2004 
(6/30)  

 
167,200 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
 

 
2003 
(6/30)  

 
160,233 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
Gerald DeCiccio 
(CFO) 

 
2005 
(6/30)  

 
145,200 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
400,000 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
 

 
2004 
(6/30)  

 
158,400 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
 

 
2003 
(6/30) 

 
158,400 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
-0- 

 
6,0922 

         
 

(1)  Amounts paid on deferred salary from prior years 
(2)  Amounts paid for vacation 
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OPTION/SAR GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR 

(Individual Grants) 
 

 
 
 
Name 

Number of Securities 
Underlying 

Options/SAR’s Granted  
(#) 

Percent of Total 
Options/SAR’s Granted 
to Employees In Fiscal 

Year 

 
 

Exercise of Base Price 
($/Sh) 

 
 
 
Expiration Date 

Paul Sandhu 925,000 40% $0.11 12/21/2014 

Eric Clemons 600,000 26% $0.10 12/21/2014 

Gerald DeCiccio 400,000 17% $0.10 12/21/2014 

     

 
AGGREGATED OPTION/SAR EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR 

AND FY-END OPTION/SAR VALUES 
 

 
 
 

Name 

 
 

Shares Acquired On 
Exercise (#) 

 
 

Value 
Realized ($) 

Number of Unexecised 
Securities Underlying 

Options/SARs At FY-End (#) 
Exercisable/Unexercisable 

Value of Unexercised In 
The-Money Option/SARs 

At FY-End ($) 
Exercisable/Unexercisable

Paul Sandhu 0 n/a 693,000 / 837,000 9,250 / 37,000 
Eric Clemons 0 n/a 572,000 / 573,000 7,200 / 28,800 
Gerald DeCiccio 0 n/a 391,000 / 394,000 4,800 / 19,200 
      

     
1999 Stock Option Plan 
 
 On September 20, 1999, our Board of Directors approved the GTC Telecom Corp. Omnibus Stock Option Plan (the 
“1999 Plan”), effective October 1, 1999.  The 1999 Plan was approved and ratified by the shareholders on December 13, 
1999 at our 1999 annual shareholder’s meeting.  Under the terms of the 1999 Plan, the Board has the sole authority to 
determine which of the eligible persons shall receive options, the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of an 
option, and other terms and conditions of the options granted under the 1999 Plan to the extent they don’t conflict with the 
terms of the 1999 Plan. 
 
 Upon implementation of our 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (as described below), we closed the 1999 Plan.  As of the 
end of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, a total of 723,600 options, previously issued to employees, exercisable at a 
weighted average of $0.94 per share remain outstanding. 
 
2001 Stock Incentive Plan 
 
 On October 17, 2001, our Board approved the GTC Telecom Corp. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the “SIP Plan”), 
effective January 1, 2002.  The SIP Plan was approved and ratified by the stockholders on December 13, 2001 at our 2001 
annual stockholder’s meeting.  The SIP Plan provides for the grant of various types of equity-based incentives, including 
stock options, stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), restricted stock, and cash and stock bonuses, on a current or deferred basis, 
collectively "Awards."  We may settle Awards in cash or shares of our Common Stock ("Shares").   

 Number of Shares Available.  The maximum number of Shares that may be issued under the SIP Plan is 5,000,000 
shares of our Common Stock.  The Internal Revenue Code requires a fixed limit on the number of Shares that may be 
covered by options and SARs granted to any one individual in any one calendar year and a fixed limit on the number of 
Shares that may be covered by all Awards granted to any one individual in any one calendar year.  These limits are each 
1,000,000 shares. 

 Plan Administration.  The SIP Plan may be administered by the Board or by a committee appointed by the Board 
(the "Committee").  Currently the SIP Plan is administered by the full Board of Directors.  Subject to the express terms of the 
SIP Plan, the SIP Plan administrator will have broad power to administer, construe, and interpret the SIP Plan. 

 Consideration for Awards and Shares.  Awards may be issued for services rendered or to be rendered.  Shares also 
may be issued for any lawful consideration, including cash, other securities or rights.  The administrator may authorize loans 
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from us to participants in the amount necessary for participants to pay the withholding taxes due in connection with the 
exercise or vesting of Awards. 

 Eligibility.  All of our directors, officers, consultants, and employees and our subsidiaries are eligible for Award 
grants.  Only persons actually selected by the administrator will be granted Awards. 
 
 During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, we issued options to certain employees to purchase an aggregate of 
56,000 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $0.12 per share pursuant to the SIP Plan (each 
issuance priced at the estimated fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant). The options vest over five years 
from the date of grant and are exercisable through December 2013.  Subsequently, due to the departure of the employees, 
these options were forfeited.  
 
 During the year ended June 30, 2004, we issued options pursuant to the SIP Plan to certain board of directors and an 
employee to purchase an aggregate of 30,000 shares of common stock, at a weighted average exercise price of $0.12 per 
share (each issuance priced at the estimated fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant).  The options vested 
on the date of grant and are exercisable through April 2006.  Subsequently, due to the departure of the directors, these options 
were forfeited. 
 
 On December 21, 2004, our Board granted, pursuant to the SIP Plan, Incentive Stock Options (as defined by the SIP 
Plan), to purchase an aggregate of 1,375,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.10 per share (the fair 
market value of our common stock on the day of grant), to certain of our employees.  In addition, on December 21, 2004, our 
Board granted to our CEO, pursuant to the SIP Plan, options to purchase 925,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise 
price equal to 110% of the fair market value on the date of grant ($0.11 per share). The options vest equally over a period of 
five years from the date of grant and are exercisable through December 2013. 
 
Non-Plan Issuances 
 
 On April 12, 2004, we entered into an agreement with an outside consultant for investor relations services.  Pursuant 
to the agreement, we agreed, in addition to certain cash consideration, to issue to the investor relations company, warrants to 
purchase up to 500,000 shares of our common stock.  The warrants have an exercise price of $0.13 per share.  The warrants 
are valued at approximately $65,000 (based on the Black Scholes pricing model) which we recorded to consulting expense in 
April 2004.  The warrants vest immediately and are exercisable for a period of three years from the date of issuance. 
 
Bonus Pool Plan 
 
 On January 5, 2005, our Board of Directors approved the establishment of a bonus pool plan to incentivize our 
executive officers and employees in an effort to increase our profitability and productivity.  Pursuant to the bonus plan, upon 
reaching revenue goal milestones as set forth below, our executives and employees would be entitled to share in the 
corresponding bonus pool.  Individual distributions from the pool, if any, would be recommended by our officers, subject to 
final approval by the Board of Directors. 
 
    Bonus Pool Amount 
 
 Quarter  Revenue Goal Executives Non-Executives 
 1st Quarter ending 3/31/05 $2.5 Million $30,000  $30,000 
 2nd Quarter ending 6/30/05 $3.15 Million $45,000  $45,000 
 3rd Quarter ending 9/30/05 $4.0 Million $60,000  $60,000 
 4th Quarter ending 12/31/05 $5.0 Million $75,000  $75,000 
 
As of the date of this report, no distributions have been made pursuant to the bonus pool plan. 
 
Executive Employment Agreements 
 
 On December 1, 1998, we entered into an Employment Agreement with Paul Sandhu, our Chief Executive Officer.  
The Agreement was approved by our Board of Directors. On September 6, 2001, the Compensation Committee of the Board 
agreed to revise the Agreement increasing Mr. Sandhu’s salary to $184,800.  The Agreement continues for an indefinite term 
but may be canceled at any time by either Mr. Sandhu or us.  However, if we terminate the Agreement without cause, as 
defined in the Agreement, we shall be obligated to pay Mr. Sandhu 25% of his then annual salary as severance. 
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 On December 1, 1998, we entered into an Employment Agreement with Eric Clemons, our President.  The 
Agreement was approved by our Board of Directors.  On September 6, 2001, the Compensation Committee of the Board 
agreed to revise the Agreement increasing Mr. Clemon’s salary to $167,200. The Agreement continues for an indefinite term 
but may be canceled at any time by either Mr. Clemons or us.  However, if we terminate the Agreement without cause, as 
defined in the Agreement, we shall be obligated to pay Mr. Clemons 25% of his then annual salary as severance.   
 
 On December 1, 1998, we entered into an Employment Agreement with Gerald DeCiccio, our Chief Financial 
Officer.  The Agreement was approved by our Board of Directors.  On September 6, 2001, the Compensation Committee of 
the Board agreed to revise the Agreement increasing Mr. DeCiccio’s salary to $158,400.  The Agreement continues for an 
indefinite term but may be canceled at any time by either Mr. DeCiccio or us.  However, if we terminate the Agreement 
without cause, as defined in the Agreement, we shall be obligated to pay Mr. DeCiccio 25% of his annual salary as 
severance. 
 
Compensation of Directors 
 
 Our current directors do not receive compensation for their services as our directors. 

 
CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS  

ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 
 

None 
 

EXPERTS 
 
 Our balance sheet as of June 30, 2005 and the related statements of operations, stockholders deficit and cash flows 
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 appearing in this prospectus have been audited by Squar, Milner Reehl & 
Williamson, LLP, independent registered public accountants, as stated in their report therein, and are included herein in 
reliance upon the report of such firm given their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.  There have been no 
disagreements between Squar, Milner Reehl & Williamson, LLP and Management since the date of their engagement. 
 

LEGAL MATTERS 

 The validity of the shares of common stock offered hereby will be passed upon for us by The Lebrecht Group, 
APLC, Rancho Santa Margarita, California.  The Lebrecht Group and its employees are the owner of 900 shares of our 
common stock.  Additionally, pursuant to an agreement with the Lebrecht Group, we are obligated to issue to them 50,000 
shares of our common stock.   
 

AVAILABLE INFORMATION 

For further information with respect to us and the securities offered hereby, reference is made to the Registration 
Statement, including the exhibits thereto.  Statements herein concerning the contents of any contract or other document are 
not necessarily complete, and in each instance reference is made to such contract or other statement filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission or included as an exhibit, or otherwise, each such statement, being qualified by and subject to 
such reference in all respects. 

Reports, registration statements, proxy and information statements, and other information filed by us with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission can be inspected and copied at the public reference room maintained by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission at Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Room 1024, Washington, D.C. 20549, and at their 
regional offices located at 500 West Madison Street, Suite 1400, Chicago, Illinois 60661.  Copies of these materials may be 
obtained at prescribed rates from the Public Reference Section of the Securities and Exchange Commission at 450 Fifth 
Street, N.W., Room 1024, Washington, D.C. 20549.  The Securities and Exchange Commission maintains a site on the World 
Wide Web (http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, registration statements, proxy and information statements and other 
information.  You may obtain information on the Public Reference Room by calling the Securities and Exchange 
Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
GTC Telecom Corp. 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of GTC Telecom Corp. (the “Company”) and subsidiaries 
as of June 30, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders’ 
deficit and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended June 30, 2005.  These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of GTC Telecom Corp. and subsidiaries at June 30, 2005 and the consolidated results of their operations and their 
cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended June 30, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern.  
As disclosed in Note 1, the Company has incurred losses in the last several years, has a negative working capital of 
approximately  $1,700,000, an accumulated deficit of approximately $13,300,000, and a stockholders’ deficit of 
approximately $2,300,000 at June 30, 2005.  These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern.  Management’s plans in regard to these matters are described in Note 1.  The 
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 
 
As discussed in Note 14 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, subsequent to September 28, 2005, 
Management discovered a mathematical error in the consolidation process relating to the financial statements of the 
Company's foreign subsidiary, Perfexa-India, which resulted in the inadvertent elimination of certain of Perfexa-India's 
expenses for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004.  Accordingly, the accompanying statements of operations for years 
ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, have been retroactively decreased by approximately $1,436,000 and $1,178,000, 
respectively, as more fully described in Note 14. 
 
/s/ SQUAR, MILNER, REEHL & WILLIAMSON, LLP 

 
 
 
Newport Beach, California 
August 25, 2005, except for paragraph 5 of this report and Note 14, as to which the date is October 31, 2005



 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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GTC TELECOM CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS – AS RESTATED 

 
 
  June 30, June 30, 
  2005 2004 
    
ASSETS    
  Cash   $             500 $       73,572 
  Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 
   approximately $111,000 

  
847,520 

 
691,749 

  Deposits  20,822 57,587 
  Prepaid expenses  77,804 64,899 
    Total current assets  946,646 887,807 
    
Property and equipment, net  608,297 620,471 
Other assets  76,206 76,208 
    
    Total assets  $   1,631,149 $   1,584,486 
    
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT    
Current liabilities:    
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $   2,274,505 $   3,185,018 
  Accrued payroll and related taxes  233,860 210,997 
  Obligation under capital leases  10,381 13,394 
  Notes payable, net of discounts totaling $894,486  91,138 5,868,597 
  Deferred income  4,560 4,560 
    Total current liabilities  2,614,444 9,282,566 
    
Long-term liabilities:    
  Obligation under capital leases, net of current portion  21,153 31,538 
  Notes payable, net of current portion, net of discounts totaling $302,290  1,292,974 23,565 
    
    Total liabilities  3,928,571 9,337,669 
    
Commitments and contingencies    
    
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary  -- 42,818 
    
Stockholders' deficit:    
  Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized;  
    none issued and outstanding 

  
-- 

 
-- 

  Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 
    27,802,092 shares issued and outstanding  

  
27,802 

 
22,107 

  Additional paid-in-capital  10,841,159 9,208,778 
  Note receivable officer  (60,306) (60,306) 
  Accumulated deficit  (13,280,899) (16,978,573) 
  Accumulated other comprehensive loss  174,822 11,993 
    Total stockholders' deficit  (2,297,422) (7,796,001) 
    
    Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit  $   1,631,149 $   1,584,486 
    
 
 



 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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GTC TELECOM CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) – AS RESTATED 
 
 
   Years Ended June 30, 
   2005 2004 
     
Revenues:     
  Telecommunications   $8,257,994 $10,103,082 

net services   584,547 775,862 
  BPO services   180,309 78,644 
    Total revenues   9,022,850 10,957,588 
     
Cost of sales:     
  Telecommunications   3,767,061 4,221,809 
  Internet services   178,178 555,329 
  BPO services   119,700 59,239 
    Total cost of sales   4,064,939 4,836,377 
     
Gross profit   4,957,911 6,121,211 
     
Operating expenses     
  Payroll and related    2,297,030 2,857,419 
  Selling, general, and administrative    4,175,988 3,813,626 
    Total operating expenses   6,473,018 6,671,045 
     
Operating loss   (1,515,107) (549,834) 
     
Interest expense, net   (1,122,756) (1,262,697) 
Gain on extinguishment of debt   6,301,935 -- 
Loss on sale of equipment   -- (10,392) 
     
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes and minority 
interest 

  3,664,072 (1,822,923) 

     
Provision for income taxes   9,216 13,751 
     
Income (loss) before minority interest   3,654,856 (1,836,674)
     
Minority interest in loss of consolidated subsidiaries   42,818 106,686 
     
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders   3,697,674 (1,729,988) 
     
Foreign currency translation adjustment   162,829 1,983 
     
Comprehensive income (loss)   $  3,860,503 $    (1,728,005) 
     
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders per common 
share:  

    

  Basic   $           0.16 $          (0.08) 
  Diluted   $           0.15 $          (0.08) 
     
Weighted average common shares outstanding:     
  Basic   23,320,094 21,096,423 
  Diluted   24,322,594 21,096,423 
     



 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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GTC TELECOM CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT – AS RESTATED 
For the Two-Year Period Ended June 30, 2005 

 
         

  
 
          Common Stock 

 
Additional 

Paid-in 

 
Note 

Receivable  

 
 

Accumulated  

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 

 
Total 

Stockholders’ 

  Shares Amoun
t 

Capital Officer Deficit Income 
(Loss) 

Deficit 

         
Balance at June 30, 2003  20,714,122 20,714 8,885,200 (60,306) (15,248,585) 10,010 (6,392,967)
       

Estimated fair market value of  
 stock and warrants issued in  
 connection with notes payable 

  
 

1,390,000 

 
 

1,390 

 
 

148,305 

 
 

-- 

 
 

-- 

 
 

-- 

 
 

149,695 
Estimated fair market value of 
 warrants granted to 
 consultants for services 
 rendered 

  
 
 

-- 

 
 
 

-- 

 
 
 

65,000 

 
 
 

-- 

 
 
 

-- 

 
 
 

-- 

 
 
 

65,000 
Estimated fair market value of  
 vested options granted to  
 employees for compensation 

  
 

-- 

 
 

-- 

 
 

110,251 

 
 

-- 

 
 

-- 

 
 

-- 

 
 

110,251 
Exercise of stock options by  
 officers 

  
2,500 

 
3 

 
22 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
25 

Net loss  -- -- -- -- (1,729,988) -- (1,729,988)
Cumulative foreign currency 
 translation adjustment 

  
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
1,983 

 
1,983 

       
Balance at June 30, 2004  22,106,622 22,107 9,208,778 (60,306) (16,978,573) 11,993 (7,796,001)

 
         
         
Estimated fair market value of  
 stock and warrants issued in  
 connection with notes payable 

  
 

4,896,470 

 
 

4,896 

 
 

1,485,931 

 
 

-- 

 
 

-- 

 
 

-- 

 
 

1,490,827 
Cancellation of previously issued 
stock 

  
(201,000) 

 
(201)

 
(22,799)

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
(23,000)

Estimated fair market value of  
 vested options granted to  
 employees for compensation 

  
 

-- 

 
 

-- 

 
 

110,249 

 
 

-- 

 
 

-- 

 
 

-- 

 
 

110,249 
Issuance of restricted common 
stock 

  
1,000,000 

 
1,000 

 
59,000 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
60,000 

Net income  -- -- -- -- 3,697,674 -- 3,697,674 
Cumulative foreign currency 
 translation adjustment 

  
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
162,829 

 
162,829 

       
Balance at June 30, 2005  27,802,092 $27,802 $10,841,159 $(60,306) $(13,280,899) $174,822 $(2,297,422)

 



 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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GTC TELECOM CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS – AS RESTATED 

 
   Years Ended June 30, 
   2005 2004 
     
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:    
Net income (loss)   $ 3,697,674 $    (1,729,988) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided 
by (used in) operating activities: 

    

  Estimated fair market value of options granted 
    to employees for compensation 

   
110,249 

 
110,251 

  Estimated fair market value of stock  
    issued in connection with notes payable 

   
20,827 

 
149,695 

  Gain on extinguishment of debt   (6,301,935) -- 
  Bad debt expense   724,514 159,467 
  Depreciation and amortization    303,467 298,056 
  Amortization of debt discount   76,458 199,500 
  Minority interest in loss of consolidated subsidiaries   (42,818) (106,686) 
  Estimated fair market value of options and warrants 
    granted to consultants for services rendered 

   
-- 

 
65,000 

  Loss on sale of equipment   -- 11,392 
  Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     
    Accounts receivable and other current assets   (892,273) 137,314 
    Accounts payable and accrued expenses   2,335,314 1,663,439 
    Accrued payroll and related taxes   22,863 (188,472) 
    Deferred income   -- 1,315 
     
Net cash provided by operating activities   54,340 770,283 
     
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:     
Purchases of property and equipment   (224,732) (171,425) 
Proceeds from sale of equipment   -- -- 
     
Net cash used in investing activities   (224,732) (171,425)
     
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:     
Principal repayments on notes payable   (871,632) (1,893,330) 
Principal borrowings on notes payable, net of fees of  
  $1,196,777 and $202,000, respectively 

   
945,000 

 
1,305,341 

Proceeds from issuance of stock   60,000 -- 
Proceeds from issuance of stock of subsidiary, net of  
  offering costs of $6,000 

   
-- 

 
69,000 

Principal payments under capital lease obligations   (13,398) (8,805) 
Cancellation of previously issued stock   (23,000) -- 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   -- 25 
     
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   96,970 (527,769)
     
Effect of exchange rate on cash   350 1,983 
     
Net increase/(decrease) in cash   (73,072) 73,072 
     
Cash at beginning of year   73,572 500 
     
Cash at end of year   $          500 $     73,572 

 



 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
 
 

F-6 
 

GTC TELECOM CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(CONTINUED) 
 
 
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 

Years Ended June 30, 
2005  2004 

Cash paid during the year for:    
Interest  $11,214  $577,986 

 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the Company financed the purchase of equipment totaling $66,561 with notes 
payable.   
 
During the year ended June 30, 2005, the Company converted a $725,000 short term note and accrued interest of $202,524 
into a long term note with a principal amount of $1,200,000.  In addition, the Company issued 2,400,000 shares of 
restricted common stock pursuant to the conversion of the note payable.   
 
During the year ended June 30, 2005, the Company issued 2,176,470 shares of restricted common stock pursuant to the 
issuance of a note payable with a principal amount of $1,088,235. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2005, the Company converted $67,000 of accrued interest into a short term note. 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, the Company financed the purchase of equipment totaling $146,404, including 
$39,538 of capital leases and $107,866 of notes payable.   
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, Perfexa issued 8,152 shares of restricted common stock pursuant to the 
conversion of interest payable in the amount of $4,076. 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements for additional non-cash investing and financing activities. 
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NOTE 1 Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
GTC - GTC Telecom Corp. and subsidiaries (the "Company" or "GTC") provide various services including, 
telecommunication services, which includes long distance and local telephone, and calling card services, Internet related 
services including Internet service provider access, and business process outsourcing (“BPO”) services.  GTC Telecom Corp. 
was organized as a Nevada Corporation on May 17, 1994 and is currently based in Costa Mesa, California.  The Company is 
quoted on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol “GTCC”. 
 
The Company has formed four wholly owned subsidiaries, of which only one is active (see below), that offer different 
products and services.  They are managed separately because each business requires different technology and/or marketing 
strategies.  
 
The four subsidiaries are: CallingPlanet.com, Inc., ecallingcards.com, Inc., Curbside Communications, Inc., and Perfexa 
Solutions, Inc.   

CallingPlanet.com, Inc. was set up to offer international calling using a PC to phone connection.  It is currently inactive.  
ecallingcards.com, Inc. was set up to offer prepaid calling cards purchased over the internet.  It is currently inactive.  
Curbside Communications, Inc., currently inactive, has been set up for future strategic purposes which the Company is 
currently in the planning process. 

Perfexa - Perfexa Solutions, Inc. (“Perfexa” or “Perfexa-U.S.”), a majority owned subsidiary of the Company, currently 
provides customer service for the Company's telecommunication and Internet users.  Perfexa’s Information Technology 
(“IT”) group currently develops IT solutions for GTC’s customer care needs and the integration of GTC’s customer care 
system with those of Perfexa’s New Delhi Center.  Additionally, Perfexa offers outsourced call center and IT development 
services to third parties. 
 
Going Concern - The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will 
continue as a going concern, which contemplates, among other things, the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in 
the normal course of business.  At June 30, 2005, the Company has a negative working capital of $1,667,798, an accumulated 
deficit of $13,280,899, and a stockholders’ deficit of $2,297,422, and the Company is in default on several notes payable, 
(see Note 5).  In addition, through June 30, 2005, the Company historically had losses from operations and a lack of 
profitable operational history, among other matters, that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going 
concern.  The Company hopes to continue to increase revenues from additional revenue sources and/or increase profit 
margins through continued negotiations with Sprint (see Note 10) and other cost cutting measures.  In the absence of 
significant increases in revenues and margins, the Company intends to fund operations through additional debt and equity 
financing arrangements.  The successful outcome of future activities cannot be determined at this time and there are no 
assurances that if achieved, the Company will have sufficient funds to execute its intended business plan or generate positive 
operating results. 
 
These circumstances raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  The accompanying 
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 
 
Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of GTC Telecom 
Corp. and its subsidiaries, CallingPlanet.com, Inc., ecallingcards.com, Inc., Curbside Communications, Inc., and Perfexa 
Solutions, Inc.  All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
Minority Interest – Minority interest represents the minority stockholders’ proportionate share of the equity of Perfexa 
Solutions, Inc.  At June 30, 2005 and 2004, the Company owned approximately 97% of Perfexa Solutions, Inc.’s common 
stock.  The Company’s controlling interest requires that Perfexa Solutions, Inc.’s operations be included in the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company.  The 3% equity interest of Perfexa Solutions, Inc. that is not owned by the Company at 
June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively, is shown as minority interest in consolidated subsidiary in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 
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Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Significant 
estimates made by management are, among others, the provision for losses on accounts receivable, realizability of long-lived 
assets, estimates for income tax valuations, and valuation of securities options, and warrants issued. 
 
Risks and Uncertainties - The Company operates in a highly competitive industry that is subject to intense competition, 
government regulation and rapid technological changes.  The Company has limited operating history and is subject to the 
substantial business risks and uncertainties inherent to such an entity, including financial, operational, technological, 
regulatory and other risks including the potential risk of business failure.  Additionally, the Company’s operations in India 
are subject to various political, economic, and other risks and uncertainties inherent in such country. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk - The Company currently maintains substantially all of its cash with one major financial 
institution.  At times, cash balances may be in excess of the amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(“FDIC”).   
 
The Company sells its telephone and network services to individuals and small businesses throughout the United States and 
does not require collateral.  The Company performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.  The Company maintains 
reserves for potential credit losses based upon the Company’s historical experience related to credit losses which 
management believes are sufficient.  Although the Company expects to collect amounts due, actual collections may differ 
from the estimated amounts. 
 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based on a qualitative and 
quantitative review of credit profiles of customers, contractual terms and conditions, current economic trends and historical 
payments.  The Company assesses the allowance for doubtful accounts each period.  If the Company made different 
judgments or utilized different estimates for any period, material differences in the amount and timing of revenue recognized 
could result. 
 
Dependent on Key Customers - The Company is not dependent on any single customer or groups of affiliated customers for 
a significant portion of its annual sales.  The Company's customer base changes on a continuous basis as customers are added 
or removed. 
 
Major Suppliers - The Company does not own its own long distance network and currently depends primarily upon Sprint to 
provide for the transmission of phone calls by its customers and to provide the call detail records upon which the Company 
bases its customer’s billings.  See Note 10 for details of the Company’s agreement with Sprint.   
 
In the event that the services provided by Sprint to the Company were discontinued, the Company believes that it would be 
able to identify alternate suppliers which would be able to provide it with sufficient levels of services at terms similar to those 
of Sprint.  Although the Company has the right to switch its current customers to an alternate underlying carrier, the 
Company’s customers have the right to discontinue their service with the Company at any time.  Accordingly, the termination 
or non-renewal of the Company's contract tariffs with Sprint or the loss of telecommunications services from Sprint may have 
a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations and financial condition.   
 
The Company provides its Internet Service Provider Access services pursuant to an agreement with an outside company for 
the provisioning of the Company’s Internet Service Provider Access service.  See Note 10 for details of the Company’s 
agreement with its Internet service provider. 
 
Property and Equipment - Property and equipment is stated at cost.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.  Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over 
the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the related asset.  During the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, 
total depreciation expense was $303,467 and $298,056, respectively. 
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Betterments, renewals, and extraordinary repairs that extend the lives of the assets are capitalized; other repairs and 
maintenance charges are expensed as incurred.  The cost and related accumulated depreciation applicable to assets retired are 
removed from the accounts, and the gain or loss on disposition is recognized in current operations. 
 
Long-Lived Assets - In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Statements Board ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144 (“SFAS 144"), “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-
Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.”  SFAS 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment of disposal of 
long-lived assets.  SFAS 144 requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.  If the cost basis of a long-lived asset is greater 
than the projected future undiscounted net cash flows from such asset (excluding interest), an impairment loss is recognized.  
Impairment losses are calculated as the difference between the cost basis of an asset and its estimated fair value.    As of June 
30, 2005, management has determined that no such impairment exists and therefore, no adjustments have been made to the 
carrying values of long-lived assets.  There can be no assurance, however, that market conditions or demand for the 
Company’s products or services will continue which could result in impairment of long-lived assets in the future. 
 
SFAS 144 also requires companies to separately report discontinued operations and extends that reporting requirement to a 
component of an entity that either has been disposed of (by sale, abandonment or a distribution to owners) or is classified as 
held for sale.  Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or the estimated fair value less costs 
to sell.  The Company adopted SFAS 144 on July 1, 2002.  The provisions of this statement for assets held for sale or other 
disposal generally are required to be applied prospectively after the adoption date to newly initiated commitments to plan to 
sell or dispose of such assets by management.  As a result, the Company cannot determine the potential effects that adoption 
of SFAS 144 will have on the financial statements with respect to future disposal decisions, if any.  
 
Revenue and Related Cost Recognition - The Company recognizes revenue during the month in which services or products 
are delivered, as follows: 
 

Telecommunications related services 
 

The Company's telecommunications service revenues are generated when customers make long distance telephone 
calls from their business or residential telephones for long distance service, monthly recurring charges for local 
service, or by using any of the Company's telephone calling cards.   

 
Telecommunication services cost of sales consists of the cost of long distance service provided by Sprint based on 
usage and on a per line basis for local service. 

 
Internet related services 

 
Internet service revenues consist of monthly fees charged to subscribers for Internet access and are recognized in the 
period service access is provided.  Internet service cost of sales consists of the cost of providing Internet access. 
 
BPO services 

 
BPO service revenues consist of amounts billed each month based on a client contract that provides for either a 
dedicated or per minute rate as the services are rendered.  BPO service cost of sales consists of labor and its related 
support costs directly associated with a service contract. 

 
In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 101 (“SAB 101”), “Revenue 
Recognition,” which outlines the basic criteria that must be met to recognize revenue and provide guidance for presentation 
of revenue and for disclosure related to revenue recognition policies in financial statements filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  SAB 101 was amended and superceded by SAB 104.  Management believes the Company’s revenue 
recognition policies conform to SAB 104. 
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Deferred Income – Deferred income represents proceeds from prepaid telephone calling cards which are recorded as deferred 
income when the cash is received.  The Company recognizes the revenue in the statement of operations as the telephone 
service is utilized or when the calling card expires.   
 
Advertising Costs - Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.  Advertising expense was approximately $22,000 and 
$30,000 for fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 
Income Taxes - The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109 ("SFAS 109"), "Accounting for Income 
Taxes."  Under SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to 
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in 
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  A valuation allowance is provided for significant 
deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that such assets will not be recovered. 
 
Stock-Based Compensation - The Company accounts for stock-based compensation issued to employees using the intrinsic 
value based method as prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 ("APB 25"), "Accounting for Stock Issued 
to Employees."  Under the intrinsic value based method, compensation is the excess, if any, of the fair value of the stock at 
the grant date or other measurement date over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.  Compensation, if any, 
is recognized over the applicable service period, which is usually the vesting period.   
 
SFAS No. 123 ("SFAS 123"), "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," if fully adopted, changes the method of 
accounting for employee stock-based compensation plans to the fair value based method.  For stock options and warrants, fair 
value is determined using an option pricing model that takes into account the stock price at the grant date, the exercise price, 
the expected life of the option or warrant and the annual rate of quarterly dividends.  Compensation expense, if any, is 
recognized over the applicable service period, which is usually the vesting period. 
 
SFAS No. 148 (“SFAS 148”), "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of 
FASB Statement No. 123," was issued in December 2002 and is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. 
SFAS 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 to require 
prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based 
employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. 
 
The adoption of the accounting methodology of SFAS 123 is optional and the Company has elected to continue accounting 
for stock-based compensation issued to employees using APB 25; however, pro forma disclosures, as if the Company 
adopted the cost recognition requirements under SFAS 123, are required to be presented. 
 
In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123-R, “Share-Based Payment,” which requires that the compensation cost 
relating to share-based payment transactions (including the cost of all employee stock options) be recognized in the financial 
statements.  That cost will be measured based on the estimated fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued.  SFAS 
No. 123-R covers a wide range of share-based compensation arrangements including share options, restricted share plans, 
performance-based awards, share appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans.  SFAS No.123-R replaces SFAS 
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 
25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”  As originally issued, SFAS No. 123 established as preferable a fair-value-
based method of accounting for share-based payment transactions with employees.  However, that pronouncement permitted 
entities to continue applying the intrinsic-value model of APB Opinion 25, provided that the financial statements disclosed 
the pro forma net income or loss based on the preferable fair-value method. 
 
Small Business Issuers are required to apply SFAS No. 123-R in the first annual reporting period that begins after December 
15, 2005.  Thus, the Company’s consolidated financial statements will reflect an expense for (a) all share-based 
compensation arrangements granted after July 1, 2006 and for any such arrangements that are modified, cancelled, or 
repurchased after that date, and (b) the portion of previous share-based awards for which the requisite service has not been 
rendered as of that date, based on the grant-date estimated fair value. 
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At June 30, 2005, the Company has two stock-based employee compensation plans (see Note 6).  For fixed awards with pro-
rata vesting, the Company recognizes compensation cost ratably over the vesting period.  Stock-based employee 
compensation cost totaling $110,249 and $110,251 is reflected in net income (loss) for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 
2004, respectively, as certain options granted under those plans had an exercise price less than the market value of the 
underlying common stock on the date of grant.  The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share 
if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to stock-based employee compensation. 

 2005 
 

2004 

Net income (loss) $3,697,674 $(1,729,988) 
    As reported   
    Add: stock-based employee compensation incurred  
         Determined under intrinsic value based method 

 
110,249 

 
110,251 

    Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation expense 
         Determined under fair value based method for all awards 

 
(219,200) 

 
(237,507) 

   
    Pro-forma $3,588,723 $(1,857,244) 
   
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:   
Basic   
    As reported $     0.16 $  (0.08) 
    Pro-forma $     0.15 $  (0.09) 
Diluted   
    As reported $     0.15 $  (0.08) 
    Pro-forma $     0.15 $  (0.09) 

 
Earnings (Loss) Per Share - Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 128 ("SFAS 128"), "Earnings Per 
Share," requires basic earnings per share to be computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the 
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period of computation.  Diluted earnings per share is 
computed similar to basic earnings per share except that the denominator is increased to include the number of additional 
common shares that would have been outstanding if the potential common shares had been issued and if the additional 
common shares were dilutive (see Note11).  Pro forma per share data has been computed using the weighted average number 
of common shares outstanding during the periods.  For the year ended June 30, 2004, because the Company had incurred net 
losses, basic and diluted loss per share are the same as additional potential common shares would be anti-dilutive (see Note 
11). 
 
Fair Values of Financial Instruments - SFAS 107, "Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments," requires 
disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments when it is practicable to estimate that value.  The carrying 
amount of the Company's cash, accounts receivables, trade payables, accrued expenses, and notes payables approximates 
their estimated fair values due to the short-term maturities of those financial instruments.  The fair value of long term debts 
approximates its carrying value because their rates of interest approximate current market rates.  In the opinion of 
management, the fair value of the note receivable from officer cannot be estimated without incurring excessive costs; for 
that reason, the Company has not provided such disclosure.  Other information about such related-party receivable (such as 
the carrying amount, the interest rate, and maturity) is provided elsewhere in these notes to consolidated financial 
statements.  
 
Comprehensive Income - SFAS 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” establishes standards for reporting and display of 
comprehensive income and its components in a full set of general-purpose financial statements.  Total comprehensive loss 
represents the net change in stockholders' equity during a period from sources other than transactions with stockholders and 
as such, includes net earnings. For the Company, the components of other comprehensive loss are the changes in the 
cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments and are recorded as components of stockholders' deficit. 
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Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information - SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and 
Related Information,” changes the way public companies report information about segments of their business in their annual 
financial statements and requires them to report selected segment information in their annual reports issued to shareholders.  
It also requires entity-wide disclosures about the products and services an entity provides, the material countries in which it 
holds assets and reports revenues and its major customers (see Note 12).   
 
Translation of Foreign Currencies - GTC uses the U.S. dollar as its functional and reporting currency while the Company’s 
foreign subsidiary uses the Indian Rupee as its functional currency.  Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiary are translated 
into U.S. dollars at year-end exchange rates, and revenues and expenses are translated at average rates prevailing during the 
year or other period presented.  In accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation”, net exchange gains or 
losses resulting from such translation are excluded from net loss, but are included in comprehensive loss and accumulated in 
a separate component of stockholders’ deficit.  For the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded a foreign 
translation gain of $162,829 and $1,983, respectively.   
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents – The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments with an original maturity of 
three months or less to be cash equivalents.  The Company had no cash equivalents at June 30, 2005. 
 
Significant Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 
In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB 51.” 
The primary objectives of FIN No. 46 are to provide guidance on the identification of entities for which control is achieved 
through means other than voting rights (variable interest entities, or “VIEs”) and how to determine when and which business 
enterprise should consolidate the VIE. This new model for consolidation applies to an entity for which either: (1) the equity 
investors do not have a controlling financial interest; or (2) the equity investment at risk is insufficient to finance that entity’s 
activities without receiving additional subordinated financial support from other parties. In addition, FIN No. 46 requires that 
both the primary beneficiary and all other enterprises with a significant variable interest in a VIE make additional disclosures. 
As amended in December 2003, the effective dates of FIN No. 46 for public entities that are small business issuers, as 
defined (“SBIs”), are as follows: (a) For interests in special-purpose entities (“SPEs”): periods ended after December 15, 
2003; and (b) For all other VIEs: periods ended after December 15, 2004. The December 2003 amendment of FIN No. 46 
also includes transition provisions that govern how an SBI which previously adopted the pronouncement (as it was originally 
issued) must account for consolidated VIEs. Management has concluded that the Company does not have an interest in any 
SPEs, and is evaluating the other effects of FIN No. 46 (as amended) on its future consolidated financial statements.  
  
In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs - an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,” which 
clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material. In Chapter 
4 of ARB 43, paragraph 5 previously stated that “…under some circumstances, items such as idle facility expense, excessive 
spoilage, double freight, and re-handling costs may be so abnormal as to require treatment as current period charges....” 
SFAS No. 151 requires that such items be recognized as current-period charges, regardless of whether they meet the criterion 
of so abnormal (an undefined term). This pronouncement also requires that allocation of fixed production overhead to the 
costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory 
costs incurred in years beginning after June 15, 2005.  
  
In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123-R, “Share-Based Payment,” which requires that the compensation cost 
relating to share-based payment transactions (including the cost of all employee stock options) be recognized in the financial 
statements. That cost will be measured based on the estimated fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. SFAS 
No. 123-R covers a wide range of share-based compensation arrangements including share options, restricted share plans, 
performance-based awards, share appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans. SFAS No.123-R replaces SFAS 
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 
25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”  As originally issued, SFAS No. 123 established as preferable a fair-value-
based method of accounting for share-based payment transactions with employees. However, that pronouncement permitted 
entities to continue applying the intrinsic-value model of APB Opinion 25, provided that the financial statements disclosed 
the pro forma net income or loss based on the preferable fair-value method. Small Business Issuers are required to apply 
SFAS No. 123-R in the first interim or annual reporting period for the first fiscal year that begins after December 15, 2005. 
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Thus, the Company’s consolidated financial statements will reflect an expense for (a) all share-based compensation 
arrangements granted after July 1, 2006 and for any such arrangements that are modified, cancelled, or repurchased after that 
date, and (b) the portion of previous share-based awards for which the requisite service has not been rendered as of that date, 
based on the grant-date estimated fair value.  
 
Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Securities and Exchange Commission did not or are not believed by 
Management to have a material impact on the Company’s present or future financial statements. 
 
NOTE 2 Property and Equipment 
 

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2005:  

Computer equipment $657,266 
Furniture and office equipment 204,398 
Telephone equipment 363,156 
Leasehold Improvements 249,003 
Automobiles 267,062 
 1,740,885 
Less accumulated depreciation (1,132,588) 
 $608,297 
NOTE 3 Obligation Under Capital Leases 
 
The Company is a lessee of certain property and equipment under capital lease obligations that expire on various dates 
through August 2008.  The terms of the capital lease obligations provide for monthly lease payments ranging from 
approximately $200 to $865.  The assets and liabilities under capital leases are recorded at the lower of the present value of 
the minimum lease payments or the fair market value of the related asset.  The assets are depreciated over the shorter period 
of the lease term or the estimate useful life. 
 
Future minimum annual commitments under lease arrangements are as follows: 
 

Years Ending 
     June 30, 

2006      $13,647 
2007        11,859 
2008          10,380 
2009            1,730 
 

Total minimum future lease payments        37,616 
 
Less: Amounts representing interest         (6,076) 
 
Present value of net minimum lease payments     $31,534 
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The following is an analysis of the leased equipment under capital leases as of June 30, 2005, which is included in property 
and equipment (Note 2). 
 

Computer equipment $24,536 
Telephone equipment 48,180 
   72,716 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (53,192) 
 $19,524 

 
Interest incurred pursuant to the capital lease obligations was $4,694 and $3,600 for fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively.   
NOTE 4 Related Party Transactions 
 
Note Receivable Officer 
 
As of June 30, 2005, the Company has net advances to an officer of $60,306.  The advances were made prior to enactment of 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  The advances accrue interest at 10% (no interest income has been recorded as of June 30, 
2005) and are due on demand.  The Company has reclassified the note receivable as an increase to stockholders’ deficit in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2005. 
 
Other related party transactions are discussed elsewhere in these notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

NOTE 5 Notes Payable 
 
In May 2005, the Company entered into subscription agreements, as amended, with certain third party investors for the sale 
of convertible notes, $1,088,235 principal amount along with 2,176,470 shares of our common stock (see Note 8) and 
11,970,585 warrants (see Note 7), resulting in gross proceeds of $925,000, less offering costs of $78,563.  The notes accrue 
simple interest of 12% per annum and may be converted into shares of our common stock at $0.135 per share.  Such 
conversion price was deemed to be a beneficial conversion feature (“BCF”), as defined in Emerging Issues Task Force 
(“EITF”) Issue No. 98-5. “Accounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently 
Adjustable Conversion Ratios,” and EITF No. 00-27, “Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments.”  As 
such, the proceeds of the notes were allocated, based on relative fair values, as follows: approximately $95,000 to the 
common shares issued; approximately $480,000 to the warrants granted; and approximately $350,000 to the BCF, resulting 
in a debt discount to such notes of $925,000.  Under the terms of the notes, the Company must begin repayment of principal 
and interest in September 2005 and all unpaid principal and interest are due on November 23, 2006.  In July 2005, the 
Company entered into additional subscription agreements with the same investors for principal of $911,765.  Such 
borrowings have terms that are substantially the same as those described above and included the issuance of 1,823,530 shares 
of the Company’s common stock to the lenders.  
 
On June 7, 2005, the Company borrowed $20,000, bearing no interest, from an employee of the Company for working capital 
purposes.  The borrowing was repaid on July 22, 2005. 
 
In August 2004, the Company restructured $725,000 in total principle on two past due notes payable plus corresponding 
interest into a new short term note payable, principal of $816,395. Such note required principal plus interest of $73,350 be 
repaid by November 30, 2004, and the Company issued 250,000 shares of its restricted common stock to the lender, valued at 
approximately $17,000 (based on the grant date fair value). In May 2005, the Company restructured such $816,395 past-due 
note payable plus corresponding accrued interest and penalties into a new long term note payable, principal amount 
$1,200,000. In connection with the new debt, the Company issued 2,400,000 shares of restricted common stock to the lender.  
The new note accrues simple interest in the amount of 12% per annum.  The Company is obligated to pay accrued interest 
monthly, but then only if, after deducting all then current obligations, the Company at that time has at least $300,000 in 
available cash.  The $1,200,000 debt is convertible at $0.13 per share, which resulted in a BCF of $185,000, which will be 
amortized over the life of the debt.  In accordance with EITF No. 96-19, “Debtor’s Accounting for a Modification or 
Exchange of Debt Instruments,” the $816,395 debt was considered extinguished in this restructuring, and a loss on 
extinguishment of approximately $670,000 was recorded. 
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In February 2005, the Company negotiated the settlement of all amounts due to MCI WorldCom, its former underlying 
network provider, totaling approximately $7,700,000 in exchange for the payment of $769,000.  On May 23, 2005, the 
Company paid the settlement amount and satisfied the terms of the settlement agreement.   
 
On June 8, 2004, the Company borrowed $50,000 for working capital purposes from an unrelated third party.  The note was 
originally to be repaid plus interest of $7,500 on September 7, 2004.  On November 18, 2004, the Company restructured the 
note.  Under the new terms of the note, the Company is required to make monthly payments of $5,000 plus simple interest of 
10% until all principal and accrued interest is repaid.  The Company is currently in discussions with the noteholder to 
restructure the remaining payments.  As of June 30, 2005, there remains $22,124 outstanding under the note. 
On December 9, 2003, the Company borrowed $200,000 for working capital purposes from an unrelated third party.  The 
note was to be repaid plus interest of $21,333 on April 8, 2004.  On May 17, 2004, the note, as amended, was extended to 
July 19, 2004.  On July 1, 2005, the Company agreed to resolve all outstanding amounts owed under the note via the payment 
of $30,000 plus bi-weekly payments of $8,000.  The outstanding principal and accrued interest, which, at the time of the 
agreement totaled $167,000 will accrue simple interest at the rate of 10% per annum until fully repaid.   
 
On October 2, 2002, the Company borrowed $100,000 for working capital purposes from an unrelated third party.  As of 
June 30, 2005, all amounts owed, with the exception of $25,000 has been repaid.  The Company currently is in the process of 
renegotiating payment terms.   
 
The Company maintains a revolving line of credit of $45,000 to finance the purchase of computer equipment.  The revolving 
line of credit provides for us to make monthly payments of $731, including interest at a rate of approximately 14.74%.  The 
total outstanding balance on the revolving line of credit was $27,110 and is included in notes payable in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2005.  As of the date of this report, the Company has made all payments as required in 
the revolving line of credit. 
 
The Company from time to time borrows funds from the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) for working capital 
purposes.  Amounts accrue no interest and are payable on demand.  On April 15, 2004, the Company borrowed $12,000 from 
its CEO.  As of June 30, 2005, the Company has repaid $11,000 of the amount borrowed.   
 
Future minimum principal payments on notes payable approximate the following for the years ending June 30: 
 

2006 $985,624   
2007 1,595,264   
    
 $2,580,888   

 
NOTE 6 Stock Options 
 
From time to time, the Company issues stock options pursuant to various agreements and other compensatory arrangements 
to employees and third parties. 
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2001 Stock Incentive Plan 
 
On October 17, 2001, the Company’s Board approved the GTC Telecom Corp. Stock Incentive Plan (the “SIP Plan”), 
effective January 1, 2002.  The SIP Plan was approved and ratified by the shareholders on December 13, 2001 at the 
Company’s 2001 annual shareholder’s meeting.  The SIP Plan provides for the grant of various types of equity based 
incentives, including qualified and non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, bonuses, and other 
awards.  A maximum of 5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock may be issued pursuant to the SIP Plan.  The SIP 
plan is administered by the Board of Directors. 
 
On December 21, 2004, the Company’s Board granted, pursuant to the SIP Plan, Incentive Stock Options (as defined by the 
SIP Plan), to purchase an aggregate of 1,375,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.10 per 
share (the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the day of grant), to certain employees of the Company.  In 
addition, on December 21, 2004, the Company’s Board granted to the Company’s CEO, pursuant to the SIP Plan, options to 
purchase 925,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price equal to 110% of the fair market value on the 
date of grant ($0.11 per share). The options vest equally over a period of five years from the date of grant and are exercisable 
through December 2013.   
No employee compensation expense was recognized under APB 25 for options issued to employees under the SIP Plan 
during the year ended June 30, 2005. 
 
1999 Stock Option Plan 
 
On September 20, 1999, the Company’s Board approved the GTC Telecom Corp. 1999 Omnibus Stock Option Plan, 
effective October 1, 1999.  The exercise price for each option shall be equal to 25% to 100% of the fair market value of the 
common stock on the date of grant, as defined, and shall vest over a five-year period.  Upon the approval and ratification of 
the SIP Plan, the Company elected to terminate the 1999 Omnibus Stock Option Plan. 

Non-Plan Issuances 
 
The Company recorded compensation expense for the vesting of previously issued “in the money” fixed options to 
employees of $110,249 and $110,251 in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

A following is a status of the stock options outstanding at June 30, 2005 and 2004 and the changes during the years then 
ended: 

 2005 2004 
  

 
Options 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 

 
 

Options 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
     
Outstanding, beginning of year 2,264,000 $0.62 3,356,900 $0.80 
       Granted 2,300,000 0.10 86,000 0.12 
       Exercised (see Note 8) -- -- (2,500) 0.01 
       Expired/Forfeited (342,800) 1.30 (1,176,400) 0.57 
Outstanding, end of year 4,221,200 $0.28 2,264,000 $0.62 
Exercisable at end of year 1,962,560 $0.46 1,477,560 $0.75 
Wtd avg fair value of options granted  $0.10  $0.10 
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The following table summarizes information concerning currently outstanding and exercisable options at June 30, 2005: 
 

Exercise  
price range  

Number of 
options 

outstanding  

Weighted 
average 

remaining 
contractual life  

Weighted 
average 
exercise  

price  

Number of 
options 

exercisable  

Weighted 
average 
exercise  

Price 
           

$0.01 - $1.00  3,780,200  7.28 years  $0.18  1,521,560  $ 0.25
$1.01 - $2.00  432,000  4.28 years  $1.15  432,000  $1.15

$2.94  9,000  4.30 years  $2.94  9,000  $2.94
          
  4,221,200  6.04 years  $0.28  1,962,560  $ 0.46

 
 
Other Information: 
 

The fair market value of each option granted in 2005 and 2004 is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model per SFAS 123.  The Black-Scholes option-pricing model used the following weighted average assumptions for the 
years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively: (i) no dividend yield for each year, (ii) volatility of 341 percent and 287 
percent, respectively, (iii) risk-free interest rate of 4.15 percent and 3.00 percent, respectively, and (iv) expected life of 5.0 
years and 5.0 years, respectively. 

NOTE 7 Warrants 
 
From time to time, the Company issues warrants pursuant to various consulting agreements. 
 
In May 2005, in connection with certain subscription agreements (See Note 5), the Company granted Class A and Class B 
warrants to acquire 6,529,410 and 5,441,175 shares, respectively, of the Company’s common stock.  The Class A warrants 
are immediately exercisable, have a term of four years, and have an exercise price of $0.22 per share.  The Class B warrants 
are immediately exercisable, have a term of 120 days, and have an exercise price of $0.20 per share. Additionally, the broker 
involved with such subscription agreements was granted warrants to acquire 65,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.  
Such warrants are immediately exercisable, have a term of five years, and have an exercise price of $0.20 per share.  
 
In July 2005, pursuant to additional subscription agreements with the same investors for $911,765 in note principal under the 
same terms and conditions of the original subscription agreements, the Company issued an additional 5,470,590 Class A 
warrants and 4,558,825 Class B warrants.   
 
In December 2004, the Company issued warrants to purchase up to 250,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common 
stock in connection with the sale of 1,000,000 shares of Company’s restricted common stock (see Note 8). 
 
In April 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with an outside consultant for investor relations services.  Pursuant to 
the agreement, the Company agreed to pay $10,000 per month for services and following an initial term of twelve (12) 
months, the agreement shall automatically terminate.  In addition, the Company agreed to issue to the investor relations 
company, warrants to purchase up to 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.  The warrants have an exercise price 
of $0.13 per share and are valued at approximately $65,000 (based on the Black Scholes pricing model) which the Company 
recorded to consulting expense in April 2004, since management believes the services were substantially provided in the 
Company’s fourth quarter. The warrants vest immediately and are exercisable for a period of three years from the date of 
issuance. 
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The following represents a summary of the warrants outstanding at June 30, 2005 and 2004 and changes during the years 
then ended: 
 
 
 

 2005 2004 
  

 
Warrants 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 

 
 

Warrants 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
Outstanding, beginning of year 1,040,000 $0.22 640,000 $0.45 
       Granted 12,285,585 0.21 500,000 0.13 
       Exercised -- -- -- -- 
       Expired/Forfeited (275,000) 0.39 (100,000) 1.02 
Outstanding, end of year 13,050,585 $0.21 1,040,000 $0.22 
Exercisable at the end of the year 13,050,585 $021 1,040,000 $0.22 

 
 
The outstanding and exercisable warrants above have prices ranging between $0.11 and $0.28, with a weighted average 
remaining contractual life of 2.2 years. 
 
The fair value of each warrant granted during 2005 and 2004 is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model on 
the date of grant.  The Black-Scholes option-pricing model used the following weighted average assumptions for the years 
ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively: (i) no dividend yield for each year, (ii) volatility of 362 percent and 306 percent, 
respectively, (iii) risk-free interest rate of 3.73 percent and 1.5 percent, respectively, and (iv) expected life of 2.3 years and 
3.0 years, respectively. 
 
NOTE 8 Common Stock Issuances 
 
On May 12, 2005, the Company issued 2,400,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock in connection with the 
issuance of a convertible note (see Note 5). 
 
In December 2004, the Company sold 1,000,000 shares of restricted common stock to an unrelated accredited third-party 
investor for $60,000.  In addition, the Company agreed to issue to the third party, warrants to purchase up to 250,000 shares 
of the Company’s common stock.  The warrants have an exercise price of $0.11 per share.  The warrants vest immediately 
and are exercisable for two (2) years from the date of issuance and contain piggy-back registration rights.  No consulting 
expense was recognized due to the fact the warrants were issued in connection with equity fund raising activities. 
 
During the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, the Company issued 2,496,470 and 1,390,000 shares, respectively, of the 
Company’s restricted common stock in connection with notes payable (see Note 5). 
 
In February 2004, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer exercised options (previously granted pursuant to his director 
compensation plan) to purchase a total of 2,500 shares of the Company’s common stock for $25. 
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NOTE 9 Income Taxes 
 
The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred taxes as of June 30, 2005 are as follows: 

 
Deferred tax asset: 
      Net operating loss carryforward $8,240,000 
      Allowance for doubtful accounts 44,000 
  
      Total gross deferred tax asset 8,284,000 
 
     Less valuation allowance (8,284,000) 
 
      Net deferred tax asset  $       -- 
 
There is no significant provision for income taxes for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 since the Company fully offset 
taxable income in 2005 with net operating losses from prior years and incurred taxable losses in 2004. 
 
The provision for income taxes for fiscal 2005 and 2004 differs from the amount computed by applying the U.S.  Federal 
income tax rate of 34% to loss before income taxes as a result of the following for the year ending: 
 

 June 30, 
       2005       2004 
Computed tax benefit at federal statutory rate  $  1,257,000 $ (588,000) 
  State income tax benefit, net of federal effect  222,000 (104,000) 
  Change in valuation allowance  (1,438,000) 645,000 
  Other   (31,783) 60,753 
  $         9,217 $    13,753 
    
As of June 30, 2005, the Company had tax net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $20,600,000 and $6,500,000 
for federal and state income tax reporting purposes, respectively, which begin expiring in 2014 and 2005, respectively.  
Effective September 11, 2002, pursuant to California revenue and tax code section 24416.3, no net operating loss deduction 
would be allowed for any taxable year beginning on or after January 1, 2002, and before January 1, 2004.  For any suspended 
losses, the carryover period would be extended by one year for losses incurred in tax years beginning on or after January 1, 
2002, and before January 1, 2003; and by two years for losses incurred in taxable years beginning before January 1, 2002. 

In 2005 and 2004, the Company concluded that a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax assets was appropriate.  
SFAS 109 requires that a valuation allowance must be established when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of 
deferred tax assets will not be realized.  In making such determination, a review of all available positive and negative 
evidence must be considered, including scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, tax 
planning strategies, and recent financial performance.  Accounting guidance further states that forming a conclusion that a 
valuation allowance is not needed is difficult when there is negative evidence such as cumulative losses in recent years.  As a 
result of the Company's recent cumulative losses prior to the gain on extinguishment of debt, the Company concluded that a 
full valuation allowance should be recorded in 2005 and 2004.  As of June 30, 2005, the Company has provided a valuation 
allowance of $8,284,000 to fully reduce the deferred tax assets.  The net change in the valuation allowance for fiscal year 
2005 was a decrease of $1,438,000. 

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“AJCA”) was signed into law. The AJCA provides several 
incentives for US multinational corporations and US manufacturers. Subject to certain limitations, the incentives include an 
85% dividend received deduction for certain dividends from controlled foreign corporations that repatriate accumulated 
income abroad, and a deduction for domestic qualified production activities taxable income. The US Treasury Department is 
expected to issue additional guidance with regards to these provisions. In December 2004, the FASB issued FSP 109-2, 
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"Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 
2004." FSP 109-2 states that an enterprise is allowed time beyond the financial reporting period of enactment to evaluate the 
effect of the Act on its plan for reinvestment or repatriation of foreign earnings for the purposes of applying FASB Statement 
No. 109.We are in the process of analyzing whether to take advantage of this opportunity or the potential impact on our 
income tax provision, if any. 

In the event the Company was to experience a greater than 50% change in ownership as defined in Section 382 of the Internal 
Revenue Code, the utilization of the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards could be severely restricted. 

NOTE 10 Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Stock purchase Agreement - Pursuant to a common stock purchase agreement (“Agreement”) with Bluefire Capital, Inc. 
(“Bluefire”), the Company is entitled to issue and sell common stock to Bluefire in the form of draws for up to an aggregate 
of $20,000,000, as defined in the Agreement, from time to time during a three year period beginning on the date of the filing 
of an effective registration statement.  On November 20, 2001, the Company filed a registration statement under the 
Securities Act with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) for 15,000,000 shares available to be issued to 
Bluefire under the Agreement should the Company choose to draw down on these shares and on January 23, 2002, the 
registration statement was declared effective.  Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company must draw a minimum of $500,000 
by January 23, 2005, or the Company shall be required to pay liquidated damages equal to one-half of the amount not drawn-
down.   
 
On December 14, 2004, the Company and Bluefire agreed to terminate the agreement.  In addition, Bluefire agreed to waive 
the Liquidated Damages in exchange for a one time payment by the Company of $10,000, to be paid by January 17, 2005.  
On January 17, 2005, the Company paid the $10,000 termination fee 
 
Operating Leases - The Company leases a total of 5,137 square feet of office space for its headquarters and customer service 
operations in Costa Mesa, California at a monthly rental rate of $9,697 pursuant to a one-year lease agreement ending 
February 28, 2006. 
 
Effective October 1, 2002, Perfexa-U.S.’s Indian subsidiary, Perfexa Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (“Perfexa-India”), began leasing 
approximately 15,422 square feet of office space in Gurgaon, India, a suburb of New Delhi, at a monthly rate of Rs. 524,348 
(approximately $12,100) per month.  This facility serves as Perfexa-India’s call center, IT development center, and 
administrative offices.  The lease is for a term of three years with an option to renew for an additional three year term with an 
increase in the rental rate of 20%.  Effective October 1, 2002, Perfexa-India also entered into a maintenance agreement for its 
New Delhi facility.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Perfexa-India is obligated to pay a monthly maintenance fee of 
Rs. 138,798 (approximately $3,200) per month for the first twelve months.  Thereafter, the monthly fee will be calculated 
based on the actual costs of maintenance (including electricity and water) plus a 20% mark-up. 
 
Future minimum annual commitments under long-term facility lease and supplier arrangements (see below) approximate the 
following: 
 

 
Years Ending 
June 30, 

Facility Leases 
and Other 

Commitments 

 
Telecom 

Supplier 

 
 

Total 

2006 $168,000 $162,000 $330,000 
2007 7,000 50,000 57,000 
 $175,000 $212,000 $387,000 

 
Rent expense for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 was $405,145 and $433,953, respectively. 
Contracts and Agreements – The Company does not own its own long distance network and currently depends upon third 
parties to provide for the transmission of phone calls by its customers and to provide the call detail records upon which the 
Company bases its customer’s billings.  Previously, the Company contracted with MCI WorldCom Network Services, Inc. 
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(“MCI”) as its underlying carrier.  On July 1, 2004, the Company received notice from MCI that it was in default of the terms 
of its Promissory Note with MCI as well as the Telecommunications Services Agreement and Data Services Agreement 
(“TSA”) between MCI and GTC.  The total outstanding balance due MCI was approximately $7,739,261 at May 23, 2005, 
including $4,925,437 due on the Promissory Note, $1,186,875 of accrued interest on the Promissory Note, and $1,626,949 
owed on the TSA which have been included in accounts payable.  As discussed in Note 5, on March 6, 2005, the Company 
negotiated a settlement with MCI providing for the full satisfaction of all amounts due MCI in exchange for payment of 
$750,000 on or before March 31, 2005 (the "Settlement Amount").  Subsequently, MCI agreed to extend the deadline for the 
payment of the Settlement Amount provided that the Company pay an additional $10,0000 and that the Settlement Amount 
accrue interest in the amount of $187.50 per day until paid.  On May 23, 2005, the Company paid MCI $769,000 which 
represented full satisfaction of the Settlement Amount and accrued interest.  The difference of $6,970,261 was recorded as a 
gain on the extinguishment of debt in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. 
 
On July 7, 2004, the Company transferred its customer accounts to its alternate supplier, Sprint Communications Company 
L.P. (“Sprint”).  Pursuant to the terms of its agreement with Sprint, as amended, the Company is obligated to a monthly 
minimum of $25,000 through July 26, 2006.  For any period during which the Company fails to meet its monthly minimum, 
the Company would be liable for 25% of the difference between the Company’s actual usage and the stated minimum. The 
Company may terminate the agreement upon ninety (90) days written notice provided that the Company pays a termination 
fee equal to 50% of the aggregate minimum revenue requirement for the remaining term of the contract if the Company 
terminates for convenience or by default of the Company prior to the expiration date which was $162,000 as of June 30, 
2005.  Sprint may terminate the agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice and then only in the event that the Company 
is in material breach of the agreement.  However, in cases of nonpayment, Sprint may elect to immediately terminate the 
Agreement. 
 
GTC does not currently have its own Internet Network.  Currently, the Company provides its Internet Service Provider 
Access services pursuant to an agreement with a third party company for the provisioning of the Company’s Internet Service 
Provider Access service.  The Company is not obligated to any monthly minimums under its agreement with its underlying 
Internet service provider.  
 
 
Bonus Pool Plan 
 
On January 5, 2005, the Board of Directors approved the establishment of a bonus pool plan (the "Bonus Plan") to incentivize 
its executive officers and employees in an effort to increase the Company's profitability and productivity.  Pursuant to the 
Bonus Plan, upon reaching revenue goal milestones as set forth below, executives and employees of the Company would be 
entitled to share in the corresponding bonus pool.  Individual distributions from the pool, if any, would be recommended by 
the officers of the Company, subject to final approval by the Board of Directors. 
 
 Bonus Pool Amount 
 Quarter    Revenue Goal Executives Non-Executives 
 1st Quarter ending 3/31/05 $2.5 Million $30,000  $30,000 
 2nd Quarter ending 6/30/05 $3.15 Million $45,000  $45,000 
 3rd Quarter ending 9/30/05 $4.0 Million $60,000  $60,000 
 4th Quarter ending 12/31/05 $5.0 Million $75,000  $75,000 
 
As of the date of this report, no bonuses have been accrued or distributions have been made pursuant to the Bonus Pool Plan. 
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NOTE 11 Earnings Per Share 
 
The following is a reconciliation of the number of shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted 
earnings per share for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004: 
 
 2005  2004 
Net income (loss) $3,697,674  $(1,729,988) 
    
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 23,320,094  21,096,423 
Incremental shares from the assumed exercise of dilutive stock 
    options and warrants 

 
1,002,500 

  
-- 

Dilutive potential common shares 24,322,594  21,096,423 
    
Net loss per share:    

Basic $   0.16  $   (0.08) 
Diluted $   0.15  $   (0.08) 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2004, potentially dilutive incremental shares were not included in the computation of diluted net 
loss per share because the Company had a net loss, which would make their inclusion antidilutive.  Options and warrants to 
purchase 14,010,645 and 3,304,000 shares of the Company’s common stock that were outstanding at June 30, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively, were not considered potentially dilutive because the exercise price of the options and warrants was greater than 
the average market price of the common shares and, therefore, the effect of their inclusion would be antidilutive. 
 
NOTE 12 Business Segment Information 
 
Segment and geographical information is assigned by region based upon management responsibility for such items.  The 
following table presents information about the Company’s operations by geographical area for the years ended June 30, 2005 
and 2004.   

 2005 2004 
Revenues   
    Telecommunications and Internet $8,842,541 $10,878,944 
    BPO   
       Perfexa-U.S. 180,309 78,644 
       Perfexa-India -- -- 
         Total $9,022,850 $10,957,588 
   
Cost of Sales   
    Telecommunications and Internet $3,945,239 $4,777,138 
    BPO   
       Perfexa-U.S. 119,700 59,239 
       Perfexa-India -- -- 
         Total $4,064,939 $4,836,377 
   
Operating Loss   
    Telecommunications and Internet $794,384 $3,013,166 
    BPO   
       Perfexa-U.S. (952,842) (2,396,369) 
       Perfexa-India (1,356,649) (1,166,631) 
         Total $(1,515,107) $(549,834) 
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Capital Expenditures   
    Telecommunications and Internet $43,733 $146,181 
    BPO   
       Perfexa-U.S. 1,293 7,864 
       Perfexa-India 217,839 163,784 
         Total $262,865 $317,829 

 
Identifiable assets are assigned by region based upon management responsibility.  The following table presents information 
about the Company’s identifiable assets by geographic region: 
 

 June 30, 2005 June 30, 2004 
Assets   
    Telecommunications and Internet $996,406 $1,002,223 
    BPO   
       Perfexa-U.S. 25,416 28,549 
       Perfexa-India 609,327 553,714 
         Total $1,631,149 $1,584,486 

 
NOTE 13 Subsequent Events (Unaudited) 
 
In August 2005, the Company's foreign subsidiary, Perfexa Solutions Private Limited, completed a private offering of 
530,000 shares of its common stock to third-party investors at the price of 2 Rupees per share, resulting in gross proceeds of 
$24,400. 
 
In September 2005, the Company's foreign subsidiary, Perfexa Solutions Private Limited, initiated a private offering of its 
common stock to third-party investors at a price of 12 Rupees per share.  As of the date of this report, 250,000 shares have 
been sold, resulting in gross proceeds of $69,000. 
 
Other unaudited subsequent events are discussed elsewhere in these notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
 
NOTE 14 Restatement  
 
Subsequent to September 28, 2005 and after the Company had filed its Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2005, Management discovered a mathematical error in the consolidation process relating to the financial 
statements of the Company's foreign subsidiary, Perfexa-India, which resulted in the inadvertent elimination of certain of 
Perfexa-India's operating expenses for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004.  Accordingly, the accompanying statements 
of operations for the periods described in the preceding sentence have been retroactively adjusted as summarized below: 
 

Effect of Inadvertent Elimination of 
Expenses In Consolidation Process 

 As Previously 
Reported 

Retroactive 
Adjustment 

 
As Restated 

Fiscal Year 2005     
  -  Net Income  $  5,134,123 $ (1,436,449) $  3,697,674 
  -  Diluted Earnings Per Share  $   0.21 $ (0.06) $ 0.15 
     
Fiscal Year 2004     
  - Net Loss  $  (552,267) $ (1,177,721) $ (1,729,988) 
  - Loss Per Share  $ (0.03) $ (0.05) (0.08) 
 



 

 

YOU MAY RELY ON THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS. WE HAVE NOT AUTHORIZED 
ANYONE TO PROVIDE INFORMATION DIFFERENT FROM THAT CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS. NEITHER 
THE DELIVERY OF THIS PROSPECTUS NOR SALE OF COMMON STOCK MEANS THAT INFORMATION 
CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS IS CORRECT AFTER THE DATE OF THIS PROSPECTUS. THIS PROSPECTUS 
IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL OR A SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY THESE SHARES OF THE COMMON 
STOCK IN ANY CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH THE OFFER OR SOLICITATION IS UNLAWFUL. 
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